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PROPERTY OWNERS' ASSOCIATION DISCLOSURE PACKET NOTICE 

Section 54.1-2350 of the Code of Virginia requires that this form accompany disclosure 
packets issued pursuant to § 55.1 -1809 of the Code of Virginia. 

The lot being purchased is in a development subject to the Property Owners' Association Act ("Act"). Properties 

subject to the Act are considered "common interest communities" under the law. Owning and living in a 

community governed by a common interest community association has benefits and obligations. Upon 

accepting title to a lot within a community governed by a common interest community association, 

membership in the property owners' association ("association") is mandatory and automatic. The Act specifies 

the contents of the disclosure packet, and fees that may be charged for preparation and distribution of the 

disclosure packet. 

In addition to information provided in the disclosure packet, the following are important considerations when 

purchasing a lot in a community governed by an association. 

Assessments 

Each owner is responsible for and obligated to pay regular assessments and, if applicable, other assessments, 

including special assessments, and other mandatory fees to ensure that the association's financial requirements 

are met. Assessments are mandatory, imposed by the association for expenses incurred for maintenance and 

services provided for the benefit of some or all of the lots, reserves for future expenditures, the maintenance, 

repair, and replacement of the common area, including for the construction or maintenance of stormwater 

management facilities, insurance, administrative expenses, and other costs and expenses established in the 

governing documents. Failure or refusal to pay assessments and any other mandatory fees may result in 

imposition of late fees, interest, costs and attorney fees, recordation of a Hen, filing a lawsuit and obtaining 
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judgment against the lot owner, foreclosing on the lot to enforce the lien, and other actions permitted by the 

governing documents and the Act 

Declaration and Other Governing Documents 

Governing documents typically include a declaration, plats, articles of incorporation, bylaws, rules and 

regulations, and architectural standards or guidelines {"governing documents"). The governing documents, 

association policies, and other information contained in the disclosure packet describe the basis for living in a 

community governed by a common interest community association. The form of governance, nature and 

scope of services, as well as limitations on property use are addressed in the governing documents, and 

association policies. 

Owners have the responsibility, among other things, to comply with the restrictive covenants and association 

policies that outline what owners may and may not do on lots and common area. Use of common area, 

financial obligations of owners and other rights, responsibilities and benefits associated with ownership in a 

common interest community are subject to the provisions of governing documents and association policies. 

Some decisions are made by the association board of directors, while other decisions are reserved to a vote of 

association members. Failure to comply with the governing documents and association policies may result in 

monetary penalties, a lien against the lot, suspension of certain privileges, and legal action against the lot 

owner. 

Limitations 

The governing documents and association policies may establish limitations affecting use of individual lots and 

the common area. While the limitations applicable to each association may vary from community to 

community, § 54.1-2350 of the Code of Virginia makes particular reference to the following. The governing 

documents and association policies may establish: 

• Limitations on an owner's ability to rent the lot.

• Limitations on parking and storage of certain types of motor vehicles and boats within the community.

• Limitations on maintenance of pets on a lot or in common areas.

• Limitations on operation of a business within a dwelling unit on a lot.

• Architectural restrictions applicable to an owner's lot.

• The period or length of time that the declarant (developer) may control membership on the board,

make decisions on behalf of the association, and therefore operate the association. This period is often
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referred to as the declarant control period At the conclusion of the declarant control period, control 

of the association is transferred to the members. 

This list does not represent all limitations that may affect lots within the common interest community. 

Important Notice for Purchasers 

The contract to purchase a lot within a community governed by a common interest community association is 

a legally binding document. The purchaser may have the right to cancel the contract after receiving the 

disclosure packet. 

Information provided in this form is a summary of select matters to consider when purchasing a lot in a 

community governed by a common interest community association but should not be relied upon exclusively 

to understand the character and nature of the community and association. 

The purchaser is responsible for examining the information contained in and provided with the disclosure 

packet. The purchaser shall carefully review the entire disclosure packet. The purchaser may request an update 

of the disclosure packet. 

The contents of the disclosure packet control to the extent that there are any inconsistencies 

between this form and the disclosure packet. 
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The Disclosure Packet must include the following: 

□ 
Association name, and if incorporated, the state of incorporation and the name and address 

of its registered agent in Virginia; 

A statement of any expenditures of funds approved by the association or the board of 

2 D directors that shall require an assessment in addition to the regular assessment during the

current year or the immediately succeeding fiscal year; 

A statement, including the amount of all assessments and any other mandatory fees or 

charges currently imposed by the association, together with any post-closing fee charged by 

3 D the common interest community manager, if any, and assocfated with the purchase,

disposition, and maintenance of the lot and to the right of use of common areas, and the 

status of the account; 

4 

5 

6 

□ 

□ 

□ 

A statement of whether there is any other entity or facility to which the lot owner may be 

liable for fees or other charges; 

The current reserve study report or summary thereof, a statement of the status and amount 

of any reserve or replacement fund, and any portion of the fund allocated by the board of 

directors for a specified project; 

A copy of the association's current budget or a summary thereof prepared by the association, 

and a copy of its statement of income and expenses or statement of its financial position 

(balance sheet) for the last fiscal year for which such statement is available, including a 

statement of the balance due of any outstanding loans of the association; 

A statement of the nature and status of any pending suit or unpaid judgment to which the 

7 D association is a party and that either could or would have a material impact on the association

or its members or that relates to the lot being purchased; 

A statement setting forth what insurance coverage is provided for all lot owners by the 

8 D association, including the fidelity bond maintained by the association, and what additional

insurance would normally be secured by each individual lot owner; 

9 □ 

A statement that any improvement or alteration made to the lot, or uses made of the lot or 

common area assigned thereto, are or are not in violation of any of the declaration, bylaws, 

rules and regulations, architectural guidelines and articles of incorporation, if any, of the 

association; 
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10 □

11 □

12 □

13 □

14 □ 

15 □ 

16 □ 

17 □ 

18 □ 

19 □ 

20 □ 

A statement setting forth any restriction, limitation, or prohibition on the right of a lot owner 

to place a sign on the owner's lot advertising the lot for sale; 

A statement setting forth any restriction, limitation, or prohibition on the right of a lot owner 

to display any flag on the owner's lot, including but not limited to reasonable restrictions as 

to the size, place, and manner of placement or display of such flag and the installation of any 

flagpole or similar structure necessary to display such flag; 

A statement setting forth any restrictions as to the size, place, duration, or manner of 

placement or display of political signs by a lot owner on his lot. 

A statement setting forth any restriction, limitation, or prohibition on the right of a lot owner 

to install or use solar energy collection devices on the owner's property; 

The current declaration, the association's articles of incorporation and bylaws, and any rules 

and regulations or architectural guidelines adopted by the association; 

Any approved minutes of the board of directors and association meetings for the six calendar 

months preceding the request for the disclosure packet; 

The notice given to the lot owner by the association of any current or pending rule or 

architectura I violation; 

A copy of the fully completed form developed by the Common Interest Community Board 

pursuant to§ 54.1-2350; 

Certification that the association has filed with the Common Interest Community Board the 

annual report required by § 55.1-1835, which certification shall indicate the filing number 

assigned by the Common Interest Community Board and the expiration date of such filing; 

A statement indicating any known project approvals currently in effect by secondary 

mortgage market agencies; and 

The association complaint procedure required by 18 VAC 48-70-60 and pursuant to 18 VAC 

48-70-40 and 18 VAC 48-70-50.
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WINTERGREEN PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. OPERATING BUDGET SUMMARY 2018-2021 

 

2021 ASSESSMENT INCREASE OF $36 BASED ON IMPROVED RATE 2%. NEW 2021 IMPROVED $1820.00 

 

INCOME *BOOKED 2018  

ACTUALS 

2019 

ACTUALS 

2020 

BUDGET 

2021 

PROPOSED 

Assessments *Booked not cash 6,176,966 6,295,233 6,330,057 6,437,265 

WP LLC Inc. Amenity Fee 1% 276,158 293,394 250,000 150,000 

OTHER- *Late Penalty, ARB, Disclosure, Int. 103,165 201,784 40,966 40,148 

Landscaping Department 56,765 51,091 63,298 0 

Cell Tower Leases 108,761 99,370 71,400 90,000 

2019 Legal fees- Settlement Reimbursement  298,219 16,551   

TOTAL INCOME 7,020,034 6,957,423 6,755,721 6,717,413 

OUTLAYS     

Police Includes Capital 1,215,311 1,175,608 1,252,050 1,255,838 

Fixed & DEBT Services-Facilities Repair/Replace 478,077 374,281 315,400 299,300 

General & Administrative/Custodial 573,018 598,997 624,946 642,411 

Architectural Review Board 97,688 63,651 71,085 71,674 

ROADS includes Small Equip. & 2020 Asphalt Profile 2,462,108 2,562,211 2,317,357 2,212,642 

Public Areas- Pools: Rodes Farm & Chestnut Springs 149,543 196,551 144,978 172,353 

Landscaping Department 60,712 58,786 63,298 0 

ES Bldgs. Mt. Station I & Valley Station II 40,162 44,782 52,437 52,437 

Fire Dept. Operations Contribution 40,000 55,000 55,000 55,000 

Fire & Rescue Personnel 1,402,796 1,391,373 1,518,715 1,615,702 

Rescue Dept. Operations Contribution 40,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 

TOTAL OUTLAYS 6,559,415 6,571,240 6,465,266 6,427,357 

CONTINGENCY     

Capital Equipment 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 

Gypsy Moth/Management/Trails 17,333 13,413 20,000 20,000 

Legal Contingency/Management 173,815 16,551 20,000 20,000 

Snow & Storm     

RESERVES     

Wintergreen Drive & Asphalt Roads 210,000 210,000 210,000 210,000 

TOTAL CONTINGENCY & RESERVES 441,148 279,964 290,000 290,000 

TOTAL OUTLAYS & RESERVE FUNDING 7,000,563 6,851,204 6,755,266 6,717,357 

NET FOR YEAR 19,471 106,219 455 56 



WINTERGREEN PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. BALANCE SHEET* SUMMARY 2015-2018 

ASSETS 2015 2016 2017 2018 

CURRENT ASSETS 

Cash & Temporary Cash 2,761,289 2,873,062 2,974,698 6,425,148 

Accounts Receivable 130,282 179,502 209,223 210,702 

Prepaid Expenses 15,954 3,188 3,483 3,188 

Deferred income tax benefit 5,164 5,164 5,164 5,164 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 2,912,689 3,060,916 3,192,568 6,644,203 

LAND, BUILDINGS & EQUIPMENT 

Land & Improvements 4,622,059 5,209,544 5,445,418 1,874,544 

Buildings & Improvements 3,593,755 3,569,112 3,569,112 3,569,112 

Vehicles & Equipment 2,820,579 2,898,177 3,118,020 3,814,552 

Furniture & Equipment 46,777 46,777 46,777 46,777 

(Accumulated Depreciation) (5,064,108) (5,336,988) (5,626,328) (4,503,414) 

NET (Land, Buildings & Equipment) 6,019,062 6,386,622 6,552,999 4,801,571 

OTHER ASSETS 

Accounts Receivable (Assessments) 48,702 79,207 81,296 59,642 

TOTAL OTHER ASSETS 48,702 79,207 81,296 59,642 

TOT AL ASSETS 8,980,453 9,526.744 9.826.863 11,505,415 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Notes Payable within one year 165,694 203,048 1,232,823 104,837 

Accounts Payable 18,022 9,172 0 3,052 

Accrued Expenses 25,251 56,774 60,116 52,468 

Assessments Received in Advance 1,575,859 1,671,625 1,625,175 1,840,483 

Deferred property lease income 9,167 0 0 0 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,793,993 1,940,618 2,918,114 2,000,839 

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

Notes Payable after one year 1,349,888 1,386,891 152,381 290,060 

Due to Wintergreen Volunteer Rescue 324,325 307,659 290,993 274,327 

Squad 
TOTAL LONG.:TERM LIABILITIES 1,674,213 1,694,550 443,374 564,387 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 3.468,206 3,635.168 3,361,488 2,565,226 

FUND BALANCE 

Replacement 477,266 677,924 878,784 1,096,735 

Operations 5,034,980 5,213,652 5,586,591 7,843,454 

Total Fund Balance 5,512,246 5,891,576 6,465,375 8,940,190 

TOTAL LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCE ,§,.9so,gsz 9,526,ZgJ ,9i8.26,1,;8.6.3 i1,5os,�15 

*BASED ON YEARLY AUDITED FINANCIAL REPORTS (AS OF DECEMBER 31 EACH YEAR)



WINTERGREEN PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. 
ROSELAND, VA 
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To the Board of Directors 

MON FALCONE 

& GARRIS 
ACCOUNTANTS & CONSULTANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

Wintergreen Property Owners Association, Inc. 
Roseland, VA 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Wintergreen Property Owners 
Association, Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the balance sheets as of December 
31, 2019 and 2018, and the related statements of revenues, expenses and changes in fund 
balances and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial 
statements. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these :financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of intern.al control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatements. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain evidence about the amoW1ts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statement, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we 
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overa11 presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe 1hat the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion. 
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Opinion 

1n our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the Wintergreen Property Owners Association, Inc., as of December 3 I, 
2019 and 2018, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Disclaimer of Opinion on Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles gene-rally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
information on future major repairs and replacements be presented to supplement the basic 
financial statements. Such infonnation, although not a part of the basic financial statements1 is 
required by the Financial Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of 
financial reporting for placing the basic financial stat.ements in an appropriate operations, 
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of managemen1 about the methods of 
preparing the infonnation and comparing the information for consistency with management's 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained 
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the information because-the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

�J 
November 4, 2020 



WINTERGREEN PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. 
BALANCE SHEETS 

DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018 

ASSETS 

2019 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash $ 6,445,249 
Accounts receivable, assessments 103,423 
Accounts receivable, other 165,994 
Prepaid expenses 4,453 
Deferred income tax benefit 5 164 

Total Cunenl Assets 6.724.283 

LAND, BUILDINGS AND EQUIPMENT 
Land and improvements 1,874,544 
Buildings and improvements 3,636,225 
Vehicles 2,827,601 
Equipment 1,071,791 
Furni ture and fixtures 46,777 
Construction in process 280,000 

Total 9,736,938 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 4.844 782 

Net Land, Buildings and Equipment 4.892,156 

OTHER ASSETS 
Accounts receivable, assessments (net of allowance for doubtf1.ll 

assessments of $3 8, l 94 for 2019 and $29,606 for 2018) 32 870 

Total Other Assets 32,870 

TOT AL ASSETS $ 11,649,309

See Independent Auditors' Report and Accompanying 

3 

2018 

$ 6,425,148 
46,828 

163,874 
3,188 
5 164 

6,644.202 

1,874,544 
3,569,112 
2,855,649 

958,903 
46,777 

9,304,985 
4 503.414 

4,801.571 

59.642 

59.642 

$ 11,505,415 



WINTERGREEN PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. 
BALANCE SHEETS 

DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018 

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 

2019 

CURRENT LIABILITTES 
Notes payable within one year $ I 09,940 
Accounts payable 1,565 
Accrued expenses 55,687 
Assessments received in advance 1.850,256 

Total Current Liabilities 2.017.448 

LONG-TERM LIABILITIBS 

Notes payable after one year 180,120 
Due to Wintergreen Volunteer Rescue Squad 224.327 

Total Long-Tem1 Liabilities 404 447 

Total Liabilities 2,421.895 

FUND BALANCE 
Replacement 1,331,286 
Operations 7.896,128 

Total Fund Balance 9.227.414 

TOT AL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE $ l 1
1
6491309 

See Independent Auditors' Report and Accompanying 

4 

2018 

$ 104,837 
3,050 

52,468 
1.840.483 

2,000.838 

290,060 
274.327 

564.387 

2.565.225 

1,096,735 
7,843.455 

8.940.190 

$ 11,505,415 



WINTERGREEN PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. 
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018 

2019 

REVENUES 

2018 

Owner assessments 
Investment earnings 
Miscellaneous income 
Nelson County income 

Landscape income 

$ 6,588,627 $ 6,453,124 

Architectual review board income 
Tuckahoe income 
Gain on sale of assets 

Total Revenues 

EXPENSES 

Road maintenance 
Common property maintenance 
Maintenance department 
Police department 
Fire department and rescue squad 
Emergency service buildings 
General and administrative 
Architectural review board expenses 
Amortization and depreciation 
Landscape expenses 
Nelson County expenses 

Total Expenses 

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENSES 

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 

ENDING FUND BALANCE 

112,546 
210,647 
781,713 

51 ,09 I 
11,225 
6,499 

77.597 

7.839.945 

688,814 
152,362 

1,332,414 

1,131,850 
1,468,827 

44,782 
1,206,934 

65,382 
616,142 
63,501 

781.713 

7,552,721 

287.224 

8.940.190 

21,721 
191,712 
725,430 
56,765 

9,925 
8,751 

2,322,501 

9,789.929 

688,477 
113,084 

1,200,407 

1,155,180 
1,466,130 

40,163 
1,068,402 

101,085 
689,581 

67,175 
725.430 

7,315.114 

2.474.815 

6,465,375 

$ 9.227.414 $ 8,940.190 

Sec lndependent Auditors' Report and Accompanying 
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WINTERGREEN PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERA TING ACTIVITIES 

Change in fund balances $ 

Adjustments to reconcile change in fund balance over expenses 
to net cash provided by operating activities: 

Depreciation 
Gain on assets sold 
Abandonment loss 

(lncrease) Decrease in assets: 
Member assessments receivable 
Other receivables 
Prepaid expenses 

Increase (Decrease) in liabilities: 
Accrued expenses 
Assessments received in advance 

Total Adjustments 

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTfNG ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of property and equipment 
Purchase of construction in process 
Proceeds from sale of land, building and equipment 

Net Cash Provided By (Used fn) investing Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM FlNANCING ACTIVITIES 
Curtailment of notes payable 

Net Cash Used In Financing Activities $ 

See lndependent Auditors• Report and Accompanying 
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2019 

287.224 

620,858 
(77,597) 

6,295 

(58,715) 
26,772 
(1,267) 

1,736 
9.774 

527.856 

815.080 

(438,295) 
(280,000) 

78.154 

(640,141) 

(154,838) 

(154,838) 

2018 

$ 2.474.815 

694,297 
(2,322,50 l) 

9,959 

21,654 
(1,479) 

295 

(4,598) 
215,307 

(1.387.066) 

1.087.748 

(881,120) 

4.524.959 

3,643.839 

( 1,281,137) 

$ (1,28 LI 37) 



WINTERGREEN PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018 

2019 

NET INCREASE IN CASH $ 20,101 

CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 6,425.148 

CASH AT END OF YEAR $ 6,445,249 

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW DATA 

Interest paid $ 15,982 

SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NONCASH INVESTING 
AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Purchase of five vehicles $ 

Loan proceeds 

See Independent Auditors' Report and Accompanying 

7 

2018 

$ 3,450,450 

2,974,698 

$ 6,425,148 

$ 34,842 

$ (274,164) 
274,164 



WINTERGREEN PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOClA TION, INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NATURE OF ACTIVITIES 

Wintergreen Property Owners Association, Inc. (Association) was formed in September 1973 as a not-for
profit corporation for purposes of maintaining common properties and providing services to the residential 
community located in Nelson and Augusta counties, Virginia, known as Wintergreen. The affairs of the 
Association are managed by the Executive Director and board members who adopt and publish rules and 
regulations governing the use of common areas and facilities, and other properties and services under the 
control of the Association. The Association extends credit to its members, many of whom are residents of 
Virginia and the surrounding states. 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Income Taxes 

Homeowners' associations may be taxed either as homeowners' association under Section 528 or as regular 
corporation under Section 277. The election is made annually. As a regular corporation, the Association 
is taxed at regular federal and state rates. At this time, the Association is taxed as a homeowners' 
association. Exempt function income, which consists primarily of member assessments, is not taxable. In 
2017, the Association elected to be taxed as a homeowner's association and an election as a corporation 
was made on the 2018 return. 

The provision for income taxes for each of the years presented is determined in accordance with F ASB 
ASC 740, Income Taxes, which requires lhe recognition of deferred income taxes for differences between 
the basis of assets and liabilities for fmancial statements and income tax purposes. Deferred tax assets and 
liabilities represent the future tax consequences for Lhose differences, which will either be taxable or 
deductible when the assets and liabilities are recovered or settled. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in con formity with generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities al the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Accordingly, actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 

Member Assessments - Accounts Receivable 

Association members are subject to an annual assessment to provide funds for the Association's operating 
expenses and future major repairs and replacements. The Association's policy is to retain legal counsel to 
help in the collection of unit owners whose assessments are delinquent. Receivables are considered 
delinquent when amounts have not been received within 30 days of their due dates. Late payment fees are 
assessed on delinquent accounts. Receivables are written off when all collection efforts have been 
exhausted. 

8 



WINTERGREEN PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES-Continued 

Fund Accounting 
The Association's goveroing documents provide certain guidelines for governing its financial activities. 
To ensure observance of limitations and restrictions on the use of financial resources, the Association 
maintains its accounts using fund accounting. Financial resources are classified for accounting and 
reporting purposes in the following funds established according to their nature and purpose: 

Operations Fund - This fund is used to account for financial resources available for the general 
operations of the Association. 

Replacement Fund - This fund is used to accwnulate financial resources designated for future major 
repairs and replacements. 

Land, Buildings and Equipment 
The Association capitalizes all property and equipment to which it has title or other evidence of ownership. 
According to the Association's governing documents, sixty percent (60%) of the votes cast must approve 
acquisitions and seventy-five percent (75%) musl approve disposition of any common real property. 
Property and equipment acquired by the Association are recorded at cost and property contributed to the 
Association by the developer is recorded at its estimated fair market at the date of contribution. 

By deed dated December 29, 1993, Wintergreen Development, Inc. conveyed 4,628 acres of open space to 
the Association. The land is recorded at the 1993 assessed value for 3,950 acres of this open space; which 
was valued at$ I ,580,330 by the Nelson County tax assessor's office. The value of the remaining acreage 
has not been determined. The current land assessment is $9,730,000. 

On April 3, 2009, lhe Association purchased the Stoney Creek entranceway lot for $711,943. The land 
was purchased at the appraised value. On November 16, 2016, the Wintergreen Nature Foundation deeded 
a lot valued at $51,600 and has been deemed open space for the community. 

Depreciation 
Capitalized common property is depreciated over its estimated useful life using the straight-line and double 
declining balance methods of depreciation. Depreciation expense for 2019 and 2018 was $620,858 and 
$694,297, respectively. Depreciation of $4,716 and $4,716 on equipment and vehicles used in landscaping 
operations is charged directly to landscaping expenditures. The remaining depreciation expense is charged 
to general and administrative expense each year. 
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WINTERGREEN PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

UNAMORTIZED LOAN FEES 

Unamortized loan fees consist of the unamortized balance of fees paid to a bank for obtaining building and 
equipment loan commitments. During 2009, the original loans were combined into one note with a loan 
fee of$4,971. The loan fees are fully amortized, fn 2011, additional loan costs of$10,906 were incurred 
for loans to purchase multiple vehicles. All amortized loan amounts were removed in 2018 when the 
payoff of aJI large building loans were paid off. 

INSURED CASH BALANCES 

The Association maintains its operating cash balances in one financial institution. The U.S. Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation insures up to $250,000 per institution. As of December 31, 2019, the 
Association had no uninsured cash balances. Uninsured balances are approximately $6,038,481 and 
$4,884,241 at December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. 

FUTURE MAJOR REPAIRS AND REPLACEMENTS 

The Association's governing documents require funds to be accumulated for future major repairs and 
replacements. Accumulated funds are held in separate accounts and are generally not available for 
operating purposes. The fonding was based on a study perfonned by licensed contractors to estimate the 
remaining useful lives and the replacement costs of the common property components. 

The Association is funding majo1· repairs and replacements over the estimated useful lives of the 
components based on the study's estimates of current replacement costs, considering amounts previously 
accumulated in the teplacement fund. Actual expenditures, however, may vary from the estimated 
amounts and the variations may be material. Therefore, amounts accumuJat<:id in the replacement fw1d 
may not be adequate to meet future needs. If additional funds are needed, however, the Association has 
the right, subject to member approval, to increase regular assessments or levy special assessments, or it 
may delay major repairs and replacements until funds are available. 

TUCKAHOE INCOME 

The 2019 Tuckahoe income amount of $6,498 is being saved for future renovations. Since this renovation 
was a capital improvement, it is included on the balance sheets under the land, building and equipment 
category. The fundraising efforts for this improvement began during 2008 and is ongoing. Rental income 
of$4,167 was received in 2018 and $0 in 2019. 
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WINTERGREEN PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

CASH RESERVES 

The board of directors has designated certain funds be accumulated for f'uture road replacements and other 
capital reserves. The road reserve is the only figure associated with the official reserve study. The other 
reserve accounts have been deemed necessary by the board and set aside for future use. This designated 
cash account is included in the cash account as shown on the balance sheets. Details are as follows: 

2019 2018 

Designated for Roads 
Beginning balance $ l,096,735 $ 878,784 
Transfers to this account 210,000 200,000 
Interest earned 24.55 I 17 951 

Ending balance 1,331,286 1,096,735 

Snow/storm reserve 207,683 205,506 
Public Safety 1,017,563 1,000,294 
Capital equipment reserve 150,085 154,534 
Other operating cash accounts 3,738.632 4,057,507 

Total Cash $ 6,445.249 $ 6.514.575 

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

Owner Assessments 

The Association's policy is to pursue collection procedures including the placement of liens in homeowner 
properties for delinquent assessments. As of December 31, 2019, the Association has assessments 
outstanding from 2015 dues and subsequent years' assessments of $70,553. For 2019, the board of 
directors and management created an allowance for all delinquent assessments in excess of sixty months. 
This allowance for doubtful assessments amounted to $38,194 at December 31, 2019. The uncollected 
2019 dues of $103,423 are classified as current and the net uncollected dues from all prior years of 
$71,063 are classified as an other non-current asset. 

Other Receivables 

Receivables from other sources (landscaping, amenity fees and miscellaneous) totaled $165,994 and 
$163,874 at December 31, 2019 and 2018. 
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WINTERGREEN PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

LINE OF CREDIT 

The Association has an unsecured line of credit arrangement with Wells Fargo in the amount of $100,000 

during 2019 and 2018. There is no outstanding balance as of December 31, 2019. Principal is due on 
demand. The line of credit is renewable on an annual basis, 

ASSESSMENTS RECEIVED IN ADVANCE 

$1,850,256 was received during 2019 as payments on billings for dues assessed for 2020. $1,840,483 was 
received during 2018 as payments on billings for the 2019 dues assessment. 

NELSON COUNTY EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES 

The Association entered into an agreement on April 20, 2007, between the County of Nelson and several 
other local volunteer service providers to combine potential staff and resources. The Association will 
provide administrative services and will receive a monthly reimbursement. 

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS 

Effective January l, 2007, the Association adopted a 401 k Safe Harbor plan. The Association contribution 
5% in 20 l 9 and 20 I 8 of eligible employees' salaries. Contributions to the plan totaled $157,633 and 
$159,020 in 2019 and 2018, respectively. 

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

Management has evaluated events and transactions for potential recognition or disclosure through 
November 4, 2020, which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued. 
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WINTERGREEN PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

RELATED PARTIES 

Certain appointed members of the Association's Board of Dii:ectors are also officers and directors of 
Wintergreen Pacific, LLC. Membership dues, assessments and contributions from related parties consisted 
of the following: 

Wintergreen Pacific, LLC • Amenity fee 
Wintergreen Pacific, LLC • Commercial assessments 

2019 2018 

$ 293,394 $ 
370,352 

276,158 
363,084 

Other related parties include the Wintergreen Nature Foundation, tbe Wintergreen Volunteer Fire 
Departent, the Wintergreen Volunteer Rescue Squad and the Wintergreen Performing Arts, Inc. Certain 
officers of the Association's Board of Directors are also officers or board members for these organizations. 
The Association provides direct financial support and administrative control of the daily operations of the 
Fire Department and the Rescue Squad. The Board of Directors for the Wintergreen Volunteer Fire 
Department and the Wintergreen Volunteer Rescue squad are charged with the oversight responsibility for 
fire and rescue operations and capital fund raising activities. The Association does not provide any direct 
financial support for the Wintergreen Nature Foundation or the Wintergreen Performing Arts, Inc. 

INCOME TAXES 

The Association accounts for income taxes in accordance with SFAS(l 09). Due to temporary differences 
caused by depreciation, the Association's deferred income tax (assets) liabilities at December 31 are as 
follows: 

(Assets) Liabilities: 
Federal 
State 

Total Deferred Income Tax Liability (Benefit) 

The components of the provision for income taxes for the years ended 
December 31 are as follows: 

Deferred Expense (Benefit) 
Federal 
State 

Total Deferred Expense (Benef it) 

Total Provision for Income Taxes 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2019 

3,641 $ 
1.523 

5.164 $ 

$ 

$ 

2018 

3,641 
l 523

5
l
l64

4,981 
I 760 

6,741 

6 741 



WINTERGREEN PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NOTES PAYABLE 
Long-Term Debt 

Note payable to Wells Fargo, secured by five vehicles. This note 
requires monthly payments of $4,959, which are applied first to 

interest at 4.07% and then to principal. 

Note payable to Wells Fargo. secured by five vehicles. This note 
requires monthly payments of $5,239, which are applied first to 
interest at 6% and then to principal. 

Total 

Less amounts included in current maturities 

Total Long-Term Debt 

Maturities of long-term debt during each of the next five years are as 
follows: 

2020 

2021 

2022 

2023 

l4 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2019 2018 

81,792 $ 136,756 

208,268 258,141 

290,060 394,897 

109,940 104,837 

180
1
]20 $ 290,060 

109,940 

80,226 

58,834 

41,060 

290,060 



WINTERGREEN PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DUE TO WINTERGREEN VOLUNTEER RESCUE SQUAD 

The expansion of Station II was initiated in 2014 and completed in 20 J 5. The expansion project represents 
a joint effort and supports the operations of both the Wintergreen Volunteer Rescue Squad and Fire 
Department. To help finance the expansion, the Rescue Squad borrowed $250,000 from Nelson County. 
The Fire Department also contributed funds towards this project, along with WPOA. 

According to the WPOA covenants, the Rescue Squad and Fire Deparbnent cannot own the land and 
buildings. The Station II expansion was carried onto the balance sheet of WPOA as an account called Due 
To Wintergreen Volunteer Rescue Squad. The annual WPOA donations to the Rescue Squad will 
effectively eliminates this transaction over a period of years. 

ACP SETTLEMENT/RESTORATION 11-A-2B 

The settlement created a deferred tax gain of $2,218,076. The gain is calculated on the gross proceeds 
minus the remaining cost basis on land, land improvements and buildings on or in proximity to Pace! l l
A-2B. Transactions to use the remaining funds must be completed by December 31, 2022, based on the 
extention of time request made to the Internal Revenue Service. Funds must meet the requirements for 
qualified replacement property under the Involuntary Convel'sion relief provisions of Section l 033 of the 
Interenal Revenue Service code, Otherwise, there will be a potential income tax based on the deferred tax 
gain of $576.500. No defened tax benefit is recorded at this time because the anticipated result is no tax is 
expected to be paid at the end of the replacement period and the possibihty of the location for replacements 
is high. This calculation assumes a federal tax rate of 21 % and state rate of 5%. The statute of limitations 
will remain open for three years afier WPOA informs the lnternal Revenue Service of its replacement or 
nonreplacement of properly. WPOA has set aside a cash reserve fund to cover any future tax implications 
should replacement property not be found and the tax is required to be paid. 
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WINTERGREEN PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION ON 
FUTURE MAJOR REPAIRS AND REPLACEMENTS (UNAUDITED) 

On January 31, 1997, the Board of Directors adopted a long-range plan 
which revises the Association's reserve for replacement costs policy. 
Beginning in 1997, The Association shall maintain reserve accounts for 
roadways. The long-range plan was developed from a study conducted 
by the Association's board of directors in 1996 to estimate the remaining 
useful lives and the replacement costs of the components of common 
property. Replacement costs were based on the estimated costs to repair 
or replace the co1mnon property components at the date of the study. 
Estimated current replacement costs have been revised as of November 
26, 2005, to be $120,000. As of August 2009, the annual replacement 
cost was approximated to be $150,000. As of 2017, the annual 
replacement cost was revised to be $200,000. 

Estimated Current 
Estimated Remaining Replacement Cost 

Component Useful Life (Years) Per Year 

Roadways 3 $200,000 
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WINTERGREEN PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION !NC. 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

February 6, 2020 COB 1 :30 PM 

Members Present: 
Tom Steele-Secretary 
Joe Ely-Vice President 
Larry Luessen-President 
Karen Asher 
Jim Wright 
John Coy-Treasurer 
Bill Gatewood 
Rod Kessler-Te!ecommunicating 
Mark Fischer-Telecommunicating 

WPOA Staff: 
Jay Roberts- Executive Director 
Theresa Harris 

CALL TO ORDER - 1 :32 PM 

MINUTES 

President Luessen called the meeting to order and reviewed the agenda 

MINUTES: 

Approval of (2 sets) minutes -November 9, 2019 Annual meeting and Board of Directors meeting 

Motion - Asher 
Second - Gatewood 
Carried 

TREASURERS REPORT - Mr. Coy gave the Treasurer's report. 

FY 2019 has been closed and the Accountant is working on our Financial Statements/Audit for 
Year End. We hope to have audited financials to hand out at the April meeting. 
Budgeted Income and Expenses show $106K positive budget balance from 2019 These are 
budget (booked income) numbers. Actual Cash forward was $7,720.16. 
Reimbursement to the WPOA Operating Account (General Fund), for any and all ACP related 
expenses incurred in 2019 was completed from the "Settlement" (S&R) Account (most were 
paid directly from the S&R account) in the amount of $16,550.93 
Large Culvert projects budgeted, and emergency repairs were handled with in the 2019 budget. 
Prepaid road funds were cut at the end of 2019 for early Spring 2020 in the amount of $280K 
Payroll quarterly reports for 2019 and other year-end payroll work has been completed. 1095 
processing for 2019 should be complete by 2/28/2020. 
Annual Assessment Due Date - February 1, 2020 - Annual Assessments are still coming in with 
the 2/1 postmark (mail is extremely slow). Pay Lease-payment of annual assessments through 



our web site is gaining interest and sign ups increase each year. Payments are on track to date. 
Late notices will be sent next week, and this begins the formal collection process. 
The January 2020 budget was normal by all standards without a large snow event. 
Road and Capital Equipment reserves have been funded for 2020. 
Fire & Rescue Operating funding will be processed this month. 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS REPORT- Mr. Robe11s gave the Executive Directors report. 

• Tree cutter - former owner - foreclosure suit is ongoing. Will we ever get paid? Will it
cover our legal bills?? Hearing in Bedford County VA is scheduled for March 12 th •

• WPD still on track to move away from Alpha and use same law enforcement software
platform used by NCSO (June 2020)

• Assessment payments coming in OK- similar #'s to previous years. 42 properties 2+
years delinquent. Approximately 220 properties expected to pay late fees.

• Cross utilizing staff, finding efficiencies and looking for ways to improve service -
ongoing.

• 2019 audit is underway, should not be as difficult as 2018 audit.
• COB landscape project ongoing - plants ordered with bulk of the work scheduled for late

March and early April. Native garden will help ARB educate owners when building
homes or improving landscapes. Goal is to have individual property landscapes include
no less than 50% native plants. Timeframe TBD

• Gary Cornwell is retiring in the Spring after 30 years of dedicated service.
• The Emergency Services Plaza is mostly complete. We will be adding additional

landscaping and benches in the coming months.
• 2020 is going to be a big asphalt & surface treating year. Working on schedules to try

and minimize negative impacts. Asphalt overlay on SC East and Black Walnut back to
SC West is on the schedule along with Wintergreen Drive, Devils Knob Loop, Blue
Ridge Drive. Lower Wintergreen Drive may be a wait and see, depending on ACP.

• Pool season is going to be here before we know it. l am brainstorming ways we might
reduce overcrowding and the negative impacts of VRBO use. Solutions will likely
include new rules from the BOD about number of guests, owners only pool times, etc.
More discussion on this in New Business

• Raven Roost deck and railing repair is scheduled to begin first part of April and could
take 1 month to complete. Overlook will be closed during construction and owners will
be notified.

• Firehouse dormer project is planned for 2020 - new business item
• COB project - we will begin interior repairs and kitchen improvements to the original

(currently ARB) end of the building, Majority of the work will be done in house during
February and March.
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• Mixed paper recycling remains a challenge. In the last 6 months we have replaced and
improved signage, lighting, etc at the dumpster sites on the mountain. Efforts to get
Nelson County to improve signage on their recycling containers still unresolved.

• Discussions about incorporating better fire protection measures into ARB approved
building and landscaping plans is a goal for 2020. We need to revisit rules related to lot
clearing and specifically the rule that owners are prohibited from clearing trees, bushes,
etc. beyond 1 Oft from the footprint of homes. Current roles encourage planting up
against homes, greatly increasing fire risk.

Update from Mitchell: (Deputy Director oflnfrastructure) 
• Tree work, ditch work and Leaf removal ongoing.
• Fountain at entry into SC complete. Cost approximately $11 K
• Snow removal expense remains low, trucks are being washed regularly to remove salt

residue and extend life.
• Deer de-pop is underway, goal is to remove 100+ animals in the next 2 months.
• 4 door truck and New Holland roadway mowing tractor are slated for replacement in

2020.
• Continue partnership with SC Golf Maintenance to try and manage storm debris, etc.
• Significant right of way tree cutting completed in December of 2019 and January of

2020. If we have a good financial year, we hope to complete major roadways on the
mountain in November and December of 2020. This is major Ice Storm preparation.

• Major culve1t projects in 2020 include COB, Wintergreen Drive, Station 2, possibly
more.

• We continue to meet with owners about tree view cutting. We are trying hard to maintain
a balance between enhancing property while protecting forest and other negative impacts.

• Sewer project near Devils Bend is in the design and surveying stage. Project is overdue
but bogged down with easement issues, conflicts with other utilities, ete. Goal is to start
this work this Spring.

Update from Curtis: (Deputy Director Fire & Rescue) ChiefF&R 
• Rescue currently has an ambulance on order. In-service date should be approximately

June. Cost approximately 250k of which 125k is grant money. Once the new unit
arrives, we anticipate reducing the ambulance fleet from 5 to 4 by selling the van. The
concept is "fewer and newer".

• Rescue continues to upgrade a number of smaller items which have aged out.
o Light Tower on Squad - 18 years old.
o High Pressure Air Bags - Age unknown, over 20 years.
o Air Chisel set-Age unknown, over 20 years.

• The Fire Department isn't purchasing any vehicles in 2020. Our next challenge will be
our air-packs which expire next year. We have been unsuccessful in obtaining a grant for
this despite trying for the last 3 years. This year we hired a professional grant writer to
improve our odds. If we don't receive a grant the replacement air-packs will cost
approximately 225k and the bottle filling station located at Station 2 will cost
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approximately 75k. If we end up paying full price for the packs, we will delay the 
replacement of Engine 62. Engine 62 is currently 24 years old, (New 62 approximately 
600k) 

• The Fire Department continues to replace fire hose which has aged out. Like last year,
we will replace 1 Ok worth of hose this year.

• We are currently fully staffed with one out on injury leave and one out on paternity
leave.

• For over a year we have been working on "agency specific patient care
protocols." Regional protocols, which have been our guide since the squad was formed,
no longer keep up with the skills of our providers. Your better systems such as
Albemarle and Orange County have their own protocols. Dr, Just has approved our final
draft, and by mid-year we should be operating under our own protocols.

• We intend to teach an "Emergency Medical Responder" class this year. EMR is the old
"first responder". Its essentially a 50-hour advanced first aid class and is a precursor to 
EMT. It will be taught at TCH.

• Our radio interoperability project is now essentially complete. All Wintergreen
frequencies have been added to the dispatch center in Lovingston. All public safety
vehicle at Wintergreen can now communicate with all other public safety vehicles in the
County.

• Major pending projects include Parkway exit, Firewise ARB standards, valley evacuation
pathways, and public warning system.

Update from Dennis: Police Chief 
• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Accreditation Assessment completed with a decidedly favorable rep011, which all but 
guarantees Reaccreditation in May. 
All police cruisers received radio upgrades with digital enc1yption providing enhanced 
interoperability with Nelson County. 
Rewrite of entire Agency policy manual with assistance from Lexi pol (nationally 
recognized law enforcement legal policy writing group). 
Shared Computer aided dispatch (CAD) process continuing with Go Live in early June . 
Administrator training scheduled for mid-March. 
Electronic Speed Sign acquired for Valley deployment. 
Deer de-population program commenced in the Valley and on the Mountain. Goal is to 
remove 100 deer in the next few months. 

Firefly Update and Nelson Cable Update: 

All backbone fiber is in and drops complete in the valley per Gary Wood of CVEC-Firefly. 
Firefly (CVEC) is connecting additional folks as they sign up; we added 2 or 3 last week. We do 
have a couple of services we owe you that Mitchell is working with our contractors to get 
completed. On the mountain, the fiber hut is fully connected to our network ring and the internet. 
All backbone fiber on the mountain is in place. Splicing will begin soon (maybe in the next 
week) which will get light moving through the fiber. We will then begin placing service drops 
and connecting services. At present we have about 300 single family homes that have applied 
for service. We hope to have them connected between now and April. Firefly will soon send a 
second round of marketing material to let folks know we are live and connecting accounts. 
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On the condos, it has laken a bit lo get easements to use a different route then following the 
electric lines under the parking lots. That work is nearing completion and we intend to place 
multi-unit network interfaces on each building to allow any condo owner to choose the service 
also. They will market to these owners to let them know about the availability. 
They intend to have all connections done on the mountain by summer for those who sign up 
during construction. They (Firefly) will then be back every 2-4 weeks to add more services as 
we get new applications. 
We have seen 40-50% of CVEC members take some form of internet service and expect the 
numbers to be similar on the mountain. 
Jay contacted John Holman of Nelson Cable for an update. Mr. Holman stated 2019 showed 
growth, with 2020 being very bright. IP TV and Channel 29 links were completed. 

ACP Update: 
• Amicus Bi-ief complete - Supreme Court of the US, hearing scheduled for February 24,

2020, with ruling expected in June 2020. DC Circuit case on hold until after SCOTUS
verdict comes out. The brief from the Park Service employees was well done. The appeal
could very well be pushed back to the 4111 Circuit Cou11.

BRP E:xit Project: 
• 

• 

• 

Site clearing is complete for phase l of the project. See sitework design and survey . 
Phase 2 will include a meeting with Augusta and Nelson Building Officials to discuss 
earthwork and determine which county will conduct inspections. Phase 3 will be the 
garage concept ifwe go this route. 

Laurel Springs Fire Road is pa1tially repaired. It is passable for pickup trucks and 
UTV's, more extensive repairs are needed to increase chances this road will not slide 
again in lhe fulure. Current repairs cost approximately $1 OK. 

Curtis remains very active on the BRP Project. An agreement with BRP over access 
remains elusive. 

Carbon Credit Update: 
They are putting finishing touches on PDD and will submit for validation this month, 
hopefully in next two weeks. CC in discussion with Microsoft and others about buying 
Wintergreen's tonnage. Prices for forestry credits are on the rise - $10-15 per ton, we have 
approximately 74, I 00 tons. 

ARB Update: 

NEW CONSTRUCTION: We have fifteen (15) houses that have been approved by the ARB 
and are currently in some phase of construction. Twelve ( 12) of lhe homes are in Stoney Creek 
and the remaining three (3) are on the mountain. There are another seven (7) houses that the 
ARB has given "preliminary' 1 approval and are waiting for the final plans, color boards, material 
samples, etc. before final approval will be gl'anted. Four (4) of those are on the mountain and 
three (3) are in Stoney Creek. 
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ADDITIONS: Currently there ere fifteen (15) open projects on the mountain and two (2) in 
Stoney Creek. These projects are for such things as garages, storage buildings, deck enclosures, 
room additions and such that are being added to existing houses or properties. 

MAINTENANCE/FENCES/ETC.: These projects include work such as reroofing, painting, 
replacing windows, repairing or replacing siding, fences, etc. We currently have eight (8) such 
projects open on the mountain and five (5) open in Stoney Creek. 

COMMITTEE AND ASSIGNMENT UPDATES: 

Carbon Credits: See Executive Directors report above 

Tuckahoe School: Karen Asher reported the old water fountains have been removed and 
bottled water placed in the two refrigerators. The ice machine is not in the kitchen which is a big 
improvement. Jay is working on expanding parking and handicapped parking to the rear of the 
building. 

Nature Foundation: No report this meeting. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION: Mr. Luessen called an Executive Session, actions will be reported. 

Discussion of S&R Funds and FERC Suit at the Supreme Court level. 

Executive Session ended and return to regular meeting: No action 

RESORT UPDATE: 

Fischer and Kessler - Telecommuting 
Mr. Kessler reported it to be a tough winter (warm & rainy/foggy). Zack Marlow and staff have 
done an amazing job of making come backs and taking every opportunity to make snow when 
possible. Marketing and Communications have been spot on in their timing of reporting 
conditions. Spring, Summer, and Fall planning is underway and very strong with events. The 
new Speaker Series is popular. The production, Oklahoma, will be this summers play/music 
event. New Membership Director, Nancy Tynes, has great new member ideas. Devils Grill has 
an amazing new Chef. 
Mr. Fisher discussed he new Wintergreen App. Board members were downloading as soon as 
they heard about it. 
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NEW BUSINESS: 

Asphalt: See Executive Director and Deputy Director of Infrastructure reports above. 

Pools: Overcrowding and capacity issues and ideas for owner use are being discussed. Policies 
will be presented at the April 3, 2020 board meeting for the board to address. 

Firehouse Dormer Project: Plans shown to the ARB this morning and their ideas presented to the 
board with approval of I large dormer and 3 windows centered over the bay doors. Lap siding vs. cedar 
and the metal shed sty le roof will be decided upon after the next rendering. 

Tuckahoe Parking Expansion: Additional parking and handicapped parking spaces can be added 
in the back of the building with the removal of the old shed (taking to the Sporting Club archery area at 
Rodes Farm) VA Pines will be cut this week to make room for spaces. Playground location and size still 
under discussion. There is a nice playground and grassy area at Rodes Farm Park/Pool. Monocan would 
be the ideal location for a large playground•discussion ongoing with WP LLC. 

ARB Fence issue: SC clarification and updated guidelines. Disctission. Keep existing policy and 
review of case by case request, with side yards included in the possibilities. The HP 

COB Building Updates and Landscaping: The oldest portion of the Community Offices Building 
(1975) will have an "fresh" new look and a re-work of the kitchen area in early 2020. Landscaping plans 
and work are ongoing and will take a few years to complete. 

OLD BUSINESS: 

On December 26, 2019 Larry Luessen made the following motion by email. 

Motion to allow Carolyn Elefant to retain Dan Geyser in support of our Amicus Brief, with the fees for 
his services not to exceed $20,000.00. 

Motion: Luessen 
Seconded: Joe Ely 
Carried- All in favor by email 

ARB Fox Run: Jay- House on Fox Run has exterior complete. There was a discussion with the 
Building Official. Issues with the complaining owner are ongoing. 

Village to Village �Karen Asher 

Thanks to Charles Batchelor and Jay the survey was a huge success. 478 residents responded, 180 
people showed at a meeting in Tuckahoe to discuss and offer comments. Many volunteered to be on the 
Focus groups. Structme, Software/Legal, and Transportation groups established regarding aging in place 
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here at Wintergreen. A Board of Directors was formed and there will be a 50Jc3 filing with by-laws as 
funds were donated to the group to get it to a formal enterprise. Mr. Gordon Walker, retired JABA CEO 
and Mr. Tinsley Rucker (Pham1acy issues) both volunteered their expertise. Mr. Batchelor has been a 
huge help in establishing web site and email presence. 

Wintergreen Overlook: Ongoing discussion with the Nature Foundation about donating it back to 
WPOA {il was voted on by the owners to give TWNF as a building site, before the Trillium House 
became available). It needs work and Jay is discussing this with Doug Coleman, Executive Director, 
TWNF. 

Fire Road: The fire road from LS to Peggy's Pinch suffered a major slide last summer, closing 
this egress from fire suppression equipment. The initial estimates were $40-50K to repair and make 
passable. We were able to have this opened as a pass way for $8K plus mobilization (bill coming) this 
Winter. 

Laurel Springs Exit to Parkway: Lobbying efforts by Congressman Riggleman continue with the 
Park Service for egress onto the parkway as an emergency exit. This effort has been ongoing for at least 
30 years, to no avail. Congressman Riggleman has given it new life as part of the serious nature of 
wildfires (Gatlinburg) and the ACP issue. Jay will be working with Nelson County and Augusta county 
regarding land disturbance, as we have done some clearing on our part and wish to complete work to our 
boundary line by June. Preliminary plans still show a building for equipment storage in case of fire 
(undecided). Curtis Sheets has worked tirelessly on this project and has done a great job keeping it in the 
forefront of the Park Service and Congressman Riggleman's office. 

Cardboard Recycling: Jay has discussed recycling and signage with County Administrator Steve 
Carter. These discussions are ongoing. 

CLOSING COMMENTS: 

The next board of directors meeting is scheduled for an earlier time than normal. 9:30 am on Friday, 
April 3, 2020. 

Mr. Luessen adjourned the meeting at 2.45 PM. 

Scheduled Meeting Dates: 

April 3. Friday 3 rd 9:30 AM 

June 12, Friday 12th I :30 PM 

August 14, Friday 14th 1 :30 PM (Budgel) 

November 7, 2020 - Saturday - Annual Meeting - no election 
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WINTERGREEN PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION INC. 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

June 12, 2020 COB 1:30 PM 

MINUTES 

Members Present: 

Larry Luessen-President 
Karen Asher 
Jim Wright 
John Coy-Treasurer 
Bill Gatewood  

 Telecommunicating due to COVID-19 

Tom Steele-Secretary 
Joe Ely-Vice President 
Rod Kessler  
Mark Fischer 

WPOA Staff: 
Jay Roberts- Executive Director 
Theresa Harris  

CALL TO ORDER – 1:35 PM 
President Luessen called the meeting to order and reviewed the agenda 

MINUTES: 

Approval of minutes -April 3, 2020 

Motion - Wright 
Second -  Gatewood 
Carried 

TREASURERS REPORT - Mr. Coy gave the Treasurer’s report. 

Audit:  Expecting draft next week.   
Most of our budget lines remain on track in booking of revenues and expense line items to date 
5/31/2020.  
The most expensive part of the year is upon us with road maintenance. These expenses will show up over 
the next few months. Asphalt completed on DK Loop, Blackrock Circle, end of Pedlars and upper 
Wintergreen Drive.  
We have had Invoices related to the FERC suit and beautification project paid from the normal operating 
account, these also include 2 large culvert pipe projects. Mid- Year reimbursement from the S&R 
(Settlement & Restoration) Account back to the Operating Account will happen at the end of June. 
($146K To date 5/31/2020). 
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The last phase of the Annual Assessment collections process will begin this week with the filing of 57 
MEMOS of LEIN for unpaid 2020 Assessments.  (Average for this time of year)   
Employee Benefits such as health/life/vision costs will not increase in the next Open Enrollment year July 
2020 -June 2021, except for a slight increase in dental.  We have a new broker of record and all new 
vendors for administration of a new Employee Navigator system, Flex Spending, Health Savings, 
COBRA, and our Cafeteria Plan which requires the Treasurer to sign a new Resolution approved  by vote 
in these minutes. See below.  
Work on the 2021 Budget has begun and will be presented for approval at the next board meeting, August 
14, 2020.  
We are in sound financial shape as of today with constant review of finances related to COVID-19 issues 

and collections. 
ADOPTING RESOLUTION 

The undersigned authorized representative of Wintergreen Property Owners Association (the Employer) hereby certifies that the 
following resolutions were duly adopted by the Employer on June 12, 2020, and that such resolutions have not been modified or 
rescinded as of the date hereof:  
RESOLVED, that the form of Cafeteria Plan including a Health Flexible Spending Account and Dependent Care Flexible 
Spending Account effective July 1, 2020, presented to this meeting is hereby approved and adopted and that an authorized 
representative of the Employer is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver to the Administrator of the Plan one or 
more counterparts of the Plan.  
The undersigned further certifies that attached hereto as Exhibits A and B, respectively, are true copies of Wintergreen Property 
Owners Association Flexible Benefit Plan, and the Summary Plan Description approved and adopted in the foregoing resolutions. 
Date: 6/12/2020 

Motion-Luessen 
Second-Gatewood 
Carried 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS REPORT- Mr. Roberts gave the Executive Directors report. 

 Transition to new employee benefits administrator/broker is going well.  Open enrollment ends at
the end of June.  New Employee Navigator system launch successful allowing employees to login
to a benefits portal and see/manage their benefits, change beneficiaries, etc.

 No increase in health insurance premiums for this year – great news.  Dental insurance increased
only a few dollars

 WPOA is moving to a VOIP phone system.  WPOA direct dial main number will be 325-8500 with
automated PBX, dial by name directory, etc.  WPOA employees will have increased functionality

with call forwarding, intercom, conference call, etc.  A minimum of 1 Verizon land line account is
being kept at each facility to serve as emergency backup.  All other accounts converted to VOIP.
The only account that will remain with the resort switchboard will be ext 8520.  This will allow the
resort extensions to continue direct dial to the gatehouse using 8520 or 911 in emergencies.

 All WPOA facilities should have Nelson Cable and Firefly internet by the end of June.  Network
switches are now reconfigured to accept either provider with failover capability.  Additional
redundancy is a good thing.

 While most owners appear to be in relatively good spirits, COVID related restrictions, and political
and social unrest, is taking its toll.  Minor issues/concerns between neighbors and/or with the
services WPOA provides can quickly escalate.

 The split rail fence at Founders Vision Overlook is being replaced in the next couple of weeks.

 Bears remain very active and cars are being damaged that do not have a food source inside.  We
are having almost daily conversation with VDGIF on this issue.  Hand sanitizer??

 ARB projects holding steady.  66 total projects, 24 valley and 42 on the mtn (see report).
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 Fishing related complains have increase. COVID-19 is forcing people to take up new hobbies. We
are answering more owner questions related to fishing and issuing more passes from COB.
Anglers who lack permission are being asked to leave and owners are being encouraged to wear
visible fishing passes to avoid interruption.

 Construction along Monocan Drive across from Tuckahoe has generated some frustration.
Owners are removing nuisance tree species and cleaning up lots as part of landscaping
improvements.

 I will be in Nelson County Court on Monday providing testimony.  WPOA is foreclosing on 1-2
properties to settle a $30K debt owed.

Update from Deputy Director Infrastructure Mitchell Barker: 

 Whitehurst (surface treatment contractor) has started in Stoney Creek. Mountain work will be next
week.  $400k is the anticipated total cost for surface treatment this year, mtn and valley.

 Line painting will occur on the mountain as weather permits. Devils knob and Blackrock are first
on the list, surface treated roads will follow.

 We have asked for proposals and quotes from waste management to discuss gravity lock
installations for property and association dumpsters. This should make the dumpsters more bear
resistant.

 Asphalt work should resume after July 4th. We only have the Black Rock Overlook, COB and a
portion of wintergreen drive to complete.  Reminder – Wintergreen Drive from 664 to Fortunes
Ridge will not be paved.

 Hunters for the hungry needs support and WPOA is making our annual contribution early.  This
organization is a critical part of our deer de-pop program.

 In anticipation of re-opening, sanitizing stations and notification boards have been installed at the
pools and tuckahoe.



Update from Deputy Director Fire & Rescue Curtis Sheets: 

 Chief of Fire Operations – The Asst. Fire Chief will be leaving this month. A decision has been
made to eliminate this senior position and replace with a training position.  The Asst. EMS Chief
will assume more responsibilities as Deputy Chief of Fire & Rescue.  Senior staff will also take on
a bit more responsibility for daily operations.

 A former employee has been re-hired as our Training Captain.  He currently serves as Training
Specialist for Augusta County Fire – Rescue, where he is responsible for a staff of over 100
persons.  He begins on June 22.

 The implementation of a Training Captain will add a layer of proficiency accountability we have
never had, but always needed.  The goal of the senior team will be to find the weaknesses and

work with the staff to build them up.  This is not a seek and destroy mission.
 This level of change is always difficult.   We will be better for it.
 COVID19 is still here.  Our operations are still influenced and likely will be for the

remainder of 2020.  I have identified roughly 150k worth of expenses for which the
federal government may provide assistance.  I’m working collaboratively with Nelson and
Augusta County, as well as the City of Waynesboro on this.  More to follow. So far 5 of
our employees have spent time in quarantine.  Most were out within 3 days, however
one was out for greater than a week.  Our scheduling Captain has done a fantastic job
with coverage.

 We are working hard to get two new ambulances in service by the end of the
month.  One is a County truck and one is a Wintergreen truck.
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 Many of our volunteers did not stop running EMS calls during COVID.  Our reliance upon
WPOA for drivers has been minimal, yet very much appreciated.

 We have entered into a pilot-program agreement with UVA which will utilize “tele-medicine” in our
ambulances during suspected stroke incidents.  This will allow the University to get certain things
in motion which previously would not have occurred until the patient arrived at the hospital.  There
is no cost to our organization to be a part of the program.

Update from Police Chief Dennis Russell: 

 Tuesday, June 9, 2020, the new Motorola CAD and Report Management System Software went
Live. After approximately twenty years we are retiring the Alpha software.

 All Evidence must be rescanned into the new CAD, which equates to 400 pieces of evidence
having to be catalogued.

 Legally defensible and vetted policies from our vendor (Lexipol) are being released. Certain “High
Liability” policies such as Use of Force and First Amendment Assemblies have been released
ahead of schedule based on current events.

 Increased quality of life concerns being reported by our Valley customers. Speeding, suspicious
persons and activity, fishing without authorization and trespassing (Monocan Park). Procedures
are in place to increase patrol of the Valley, RADAR trailer deployment and direct communication
with the Chief when issues are observed.

 Bear complaints are on the rise. Remedies include education, behavior modification, tagging
(paintball) and other deterrents. Department of Game and Inland Fisheries has been networked in
to assist in ideas.

 Budget preparation beginning for next fiscal year. Specific and measurable decisions will be
made as to what is needed, what may need to be put on the back burner and what may need to
be cut.



Internet Update: 

 Multiple splicing and “drop” crews are working on the mountain, Fibers on the Wintergreen side
have been spliced and are ready for drops to be connected for service.

 Splicers are currently working on the other side, Laurel Springs. Anticipated splice completion is
the second week of July.  Drops will be connected after splicing work is complete.

 Completion date for the condominiums is unknown. There will be an onsite meeting to discuss
path and language in the easement doc.

ACP Update: 

 SCOTUS ruling expected any day...

 If they rule in favor of ACP, will construction begin immediately?  Will the DC Court
provide a stay on construction while those other cases move forward?  Will State and
Federal Officials stop construction because of COVID 19 concerns?  Will the current
administration see this project as an infrastructure/back to work project and permit it
through some Executive Action??

 ACP has not given up.  They were onsite this week taking pictures to update permits.

BRP Exit Project: 

 NPS granted us permission to survey the exit parcel and develop a “plan” that includes
design and construction related drawings.  The survey process includes identifying all
plant species in the construction area, archeological surveys, view impacts, soil and
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erosion control, etc.  We  have paid the necessary fees for this stage and will keep 
moving forward.  While we are optimistic, we are a long way from any sort of final 
approval. WPOA must reimburse all NPS/BRP expenses, even if the project is denied. 

Carbon Credit Update: 
 Original open space map produced by Conservation Plus had some inaccuracies.

 We hired S. L. Key to assist with identifying the WPOA open space parcels, lot lines and total
acreage.  This mapping is complete and has been shared with Conservation Plus.

 Price of carbon credits and business interest in carbon credits is being impacted by COVID 19
crisis.

COVID 19 Operational Update: 

 Weekly owner updates appear well received

 Admin staff can cover all duties working remotely and alternating being in the office

 WPOA offices will remain closed for walk-in business until phase 3.  Owners will be required to
wear a mask and use hand sanitizer when they enter the building.  We will notify owners of these
requirements, encourage them to call instead and provide masks, etc.

 WPOA facilities are being cleaned more frequently

 Rodes Farm Tennis and Pickleball Courts remain open

 Playgrounds will re-open with signage and restrictions starting Friday June 19.  We will also
provide a hand sanitizer station nearby.

 Tuckahoe Clubhouse and Pools remain closed with re-opening expected during phase 3 (best
guess – June 26th) I have shared the current pool opening/operating plan and would like your

input.

New Business Items: 
Jay reviewed the Friday weekly web site Operational & COVID-19 update. * Playgrounds remain 

closed, will re-open with signage for Owners and accompanied guests only. Tuckahoe will host a Primary 
Election on 6/23, with the Nelson County Registrar providing all COVID-19 precautions according to the 
Governor’s orders. After another round of cleaning, more signage, the Tuckahoe Clubhouse will re-open 
with posted guidelines possibly on 6/26/2020.  Groups will have to provide their own COVID-19 
coordinator.  

 Pool restrictions and rules were presented to the board by Jay and reviewed in detail. Discussion 
followed to proceed with the proposed restrictions/rules/sign in/liability waivers, should pools be allowed 
to open in Phase 3. Phase 2 of the Governors order has kept pools closed.  

Common Bike Path signs need to be repaired and WPOA will begin this process. Discussion was 
held about people walking on the Resort Golf Cart paths during play hours. A major no- no and 
trespassing.  Rod, Mark and Jay will try to get the word out, no walking on Golf Cart paths during 
Golfing hours. Will be up to the Resort if allowed during “off” hours.  

Old Business Items: 
Karen reported: Village to Village is now incorporated and with help from the Thomas Jefferson 

Planning District will move forward with a pilot program requiring volunteers. 
Jay will have the split rail fence repaired at the Overlook.  
Mixed paper recycling will be coming back to the Wintergarden location, only if it is not 

contaminated with trash or cardboard. John requested more signage. 
Surface treatment was addressed in the Friday update. www.wtgpoa.org  Gravel needs to stay on 

the road for two weeks to work-in before being swept off of the road. 
COB Kitchen and landscaping improvements are almost complete and much appreciated by staff.  

Hoping owners will be able to utilize after COVID-19 restrictions lifted.  
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John remarked on how wonderful the Ravens Roost project looks and hopes the directional sign 
will be restored. Jay has this in the works.  

*Today’s Web Site Update: www.wtgpoa.org

COMMITTEE AND ASSIGNMENT UPDATES: 

Carbon Credits: See Executive Director report 

Tuckahoe Clubhouse: Karen Asher See New Business above regarding Phase 3 opening. 
A decision will be made soon about the Annual Flea Market. It may be best to reschedule until 
Spring 2021. 

Nature Foundation: Bill reported the last meeting was cancelled. He and John reported 
the online (Zoom) fund raiser on 6/5/2020, for the Love of the Land was a huge success. $20K 
was raised. 

RESORT UPDATE: 

Rod Kessler & Mark Fischer 
Rod: Devils Knob Grill will reopen tonight with 3 days per week and the new occupancy 

guidelines in place. DK Tennis courts are ready and both tennis clinics are full. Lake Monocan 
opens today with restrictions.  Fireworks for the 4th of July have been cancelled due to COVID-
19 crowd control. Normal 4th activities will be held in the Courtyard.  SPA may reopen on 19th. 
SC Bar & Grill will remain closed with no snack shop. Mark: all Resorts in various states 
suffered from the hard shut down, not just Virginia.  Surveys indicate people are just not ready to 
travel yet.  

CLOSING COMMENTS: 

Mrs. Asher had questions related to current events and Police Department procedures and 
insurance.    
"Mr. Gatewood explained that the Wintergreen Police Department is an accredited law 
enforcement agency by the Virginia Law Enforcement Professional Standards Commission 
(VLEPSC).  This is a highly regarded achievement that WPD has obtained by meeting certain 
criteria and standards set by the commission.  He went on to explain many of the steps 
necessary to obtain this prestigious distinction." 
Mr. Roberts explained the Police Professional Liability insurance coverage carried by WPOA in 
addition to the umbrella policy.  

Mr. Luessen adjourned the meeting at   3: 45    PM 
Scheduled Meeting Dates:  
August 14, Friday 14th 1:30 PM (Budget)  

November 7, 2020 – Saturday - Annual Meeting – no election  Possible telecommunicating.
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WINTERGREEN PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION INC. 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

August 14, 2020  COB 1:30 PM 

MINUTES 

Members Present: 

Joe Ely – Vice President 
Karen Asher 
Jim Wright 
John Coy-Treasurer 
Bill Gatewood  
Tom Steele - Secretary 

 Telecommunicating:  
Mark Fischer 

Absent: 
Larry Luessen 
Rod Kessler 

WPOA Staff: 
Jay Roberts- Executive Director 
Theresa Harris  

CALL TO ORDER – 1:35 PM 
VP Joe Ely called the meeting to order and reviewed the agenda 

MINUTES: 

Approval of minutes -June 12, 2020 

Motion to Approve – Tom Steele 
Second - Jim Wright 
Carried 

TREASURERS REPORT - Mr. Coy gave the Treasurer’s report and presented the 2021 Budget for 
Board Approval based on a 2% increase in the annual assessment rates.  

Most of our budget lines remain on track in booking of revenues and expense line items to date 
7/31/2020. The most expensive part of the year is upon us with road and culvert maintenance. These 
expenses are on track.   Settlement & Restoration funds will come into play for improvements to Tax Map 
11 A 2.  
The last phase of the Annual Assessment collections process is nearing completion with the filing of 
40 MEMOS of LEIN for unpaid 2020 Assessments.   
We are in sound financial shape as of today with constant review of finances related to COVID-19 issues 
and collections.   
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The 2021 WPOA Budget is being presented today with a proposed 2% increase in the annual assessment 
rates.  
Anticipated reduction in Amenity Fees of $100K.  
Provides for a 1% merit increase for employees.  
Road Maintenance reduction in Salaries, Culverts and Capital items. 
Facilities maintenance reductions anticipated. 
Landscaping Department was closed and in housework is handled through the Road Maintenance 
Department.  
There are extra cleaning expenses due to COVID-19. 

Full funding for three new Firefighter positions phased in during 2020. 

Motion to approve 2021 Budget with 2% Increase as proposed -John Coy 
Second- Jim Wright 
Carried 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS REPORT- Mr. Roberts gave the Executive Directors report. 

 WPOA has moved to a VOIP phone system.  The only department left to switch over is WPD.
WPD should be on VOIP within the next few weeks.  Moving forward, we plan to utilize 325-8500
as a main number with automated PBX.  Timing on the use of 325-8500 TBD

 Except for Chestnut Springs Pool, all WPOA facilities have Firefly and Nelson Cable internet.
Chestnut Springs currently has Nelson Cable, Firefly is likely months away.

 IT related improvements ongoing.  These include owner database work, failover internet
connections, cloud-based backup, hardware to support working remotely, website upgrades,
network security, etc.

 I continue to serve on the Nelson County Chamber Board.  It is important that Wintergreen
participate in overall County activity.  Events, improvements, debate, etc.

 The split rail fence at Founders Vision Overlook has been replaced.  The parking area and
regrading project is in the final design phase with hopes of completing this work before
November.

 Ravens Roost Overlook is complete, hiking and biking path signs in SC are being replaced, other
signs are being replaced and posts painted, additional lake and fishing related signage installed.

 Walking paths in SC and on the mountain are being evaluated and options discussed.  Goal is to
complete additional walkway improvements before the end of the year.

 SC Park improvements are being considered.  This “park” is mostly forgotten and has more
potential.

 Mountain Clubhouse concept discussions continue.  Location, design, needs, etc. are being
discussed in hopes of having a plan to present later this year or early 2021.  Hybrid use of the
TWNF for community groups still looks like the best solution, however, it requires more

discussion.

 Bears remain very active.  Homeowners are reporting multiple entries into homes and vehicles.
DGIF is involved and assisting WPOA.  WPOA and DGIF are working together to try and make
more dumpsters bear proof and educate owners.   WPOA has begun identifying VRBO properties
and communicating directly with owners about ways to educate their renters.

 Fishing related complaints have decreased in recent weeks.  More owners are displaying passes.
Non-owner anglers are being asked to leave and educated about ponds being private.

 ARB projects – slight uptick likely because of the significant turnover in properties.  72 active
projects, 45 Mountain and 27 Valley.
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 2 ARB positions are coming open soon, BOD needs to identify candidates for these positions.

 WPOA has filed liens on approximately 40 properties.  We are actively foreclosing on one owner
for non-payment of tree cutting violations.

 While most owners appear to be in relatively good spirits, COVID related restrictions, and political
and social unrest, is taking its toll.  Minor issues/concerns between neighbors and/or with the
services WPOA provides can quickly escalate.

 More than 250 properties have changed hands in 2020.  Disclosure related property inspections
are keeping the staff very busy.

 WPD continues traffic enforcement, issuing warnings and/or tickets as needed.  To help educate
owners, guests, and contractors, a second electronic speed sign trailer is being purchased.

Update from Mitchell Barker-Infrastructure: 

 Working daily with DWR Department of Wildlife resources. Bear issues.

 Meetings planned with waste management and all association managers to discuss upgrades to
60 plus dumpster throughout resort. 8/19

 Meetings planned with DWR biologist to discuss bear densities at Wintergreen. 9/2

 Plans to deploy un-welcome mats for owners because of nuisance bear issues.

 Road Painting complete for valley. Mountain schedule to be completed by middle of September.

 Major clean out of facilities shop and organization of tools and materials.

 Sold Kubota front deck mower and replaced with zero turn.

 New Holland tractor used for road shoulder mowing sold and replaced with John Deere.

 90 plus property disclosures in the last two months.

 Tree and view maintenance with contractors on going as properties are placed into market
rotation.

Update from Curtis Sheets – Fire & Rescue 

 Preface - I have never experienced such an odd time at WFR. We are experiencing some of our
largest successes and our largest challenges at precisely the same time.

 Our fire call volume is relatively flat for the year. EMS calls are up by about 10%. The increase is
predominantly coming from on-property calls.

 Personnel challenge - COVID quarantines are kicking into overdrive. This week we had four staff
quarantined at the same time. In total, last weekend there were seven staff out of service. We
were not able to fulfill our staffing requirement for the County. This has only happened twice since
2006. Because the outage was predictable, I reached out to all of the county volunteer agencies
and asked them to step up and staff an ambulance. They did.

 Hiring the three expansion EMTs early turned out to be critical in our efforts to deliver service
without interruption. We are starting to see some volunteers remove themselves from the driver's
list as the Nelson County COVID count escalates. We may find ourselves relying upon WPOA
Maintenance employees again. We were able to secure 500 N95s from Augusta County.

 The elimination of a Chief's position and creation of a full-time trainer is working out wonderfully
for both staff and volunteers. I suspect that when I retire it will be on the short list of things I feel
made the most significant improvements to our service delivery. Every staff member is now
expected to demonstrate skill competency on a far more frequent schedule than ever before. If
they struggle, an individualized training plan is developed for them.

 Redistribution of Trey's responsibilities between Mike and myself has been a challenge because
it's dropping right on top of COVID. Coordination when you're avoiding in-person contact is tough.
We are struggling to get our rhythm. We will get there. Mike's doing a fantastic job as Deputy
Chief.

 Between Fire & Rescue we have received an unprecedented amount of grant revenue. We will
likely exceed 1M in 2020. That's more than three times our best previous year. We have a year to
spend the funds, however I'm trying to get it all done by the end of this quarter. I fear that funds
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could be pulled back if the economy totally tanks. This "hyper purchasing" of major capital items 
is creating quite a workload. We will rest in 2021. 

o We received roughly 250k from FEMA towards the replacement costs of our SCBA. The
new packs cost approximately $7,500 each. They're ridiculously more capable than our
existing packs. Each pack has an integrated thermal imaging camera. Currently we have
only 4 cameras.

o We received roughly 70k from FEMA to replace the cascade air system at Station 2.
Because we support Rockfish Fire with this system, they will be partnering with us on
providing matching funds.

o We received roughly 50k from the Virginia office of EMS towards 2 power cots and 4
Panasonic Tough-Books.

o We received 64K from Nelson County COVID funds to purchase 2 cardiac monitors.
o We received 78k from Nelson County COVID funds to purchase ventilators for our

ambulances. We don't currently have this capability. Extensive training is required. Dr.
Just only approved this for Wintergreen.

o No other rescue squad in Nelson County received any first-round COVID funds.
o We received roughly 6k from Nelson County to purchase each staff their own SCBA

mask, so they do not share masks. Currently a firefighter could wear the same mask
which a different firefighter wore an hour earlier. Every firefighter in the County will be
provided their own mask.

o We received 250k from Nelson County to purchase and equip a new ambulance. This
ambulance is part of our County EMS fleet. Nonetheless, it is titled to us, it's under our
control, and there is no lien. (New Unit 102)

o We received 125k from Virginia Office of EMS towards replacement cost of medic unit
179. This unit is assigned to Wintergreen property. I anticipate it being in service this
weekend.

o We received a much appreciated 100k contribution from a property owner to help match
the FEMA grant for air packs!

 A challenge will be to avoid having the community feel as if we have received so many grants that
we no longer need private contributions. There will always be needs. For example, the primary
fire engine for Stoney Creek was built in 1996. We will need to order a replacement within 24
months. Approximate cost is 600k.

 I have ended my six-year term as a grant grader for the Commonwealth of Virginia. There are
only six graders. In total I graded over 3,000 grant requests. I believe the experience was
beneficial to Wintergreen. I certainly learned from the process.

 We have several new volunteers, mostly on the fire side. Mike and Jeremy are doing a fantastic
job getting them trained.

 All staff have completed swift-water rescue awareness. Seems timely.
 Having to keep bay doors closed at Station 2 has been unbearable due to the summer heat. We

are having to pay very close attention to the temperature of our drugs. Twice the state inspector
has been by to record the temps. Both times we were withing 2 degrees of violation. We are
getting estimates on solutions.

 Work on the exit to the Parkway is ongoing. It is In the hands of subcontractors and NPS at this
time. Attempting to mitigate potential pushback from NPS when Denver leaves office and
potentially if the control of White House and/or Senate changes hands. History has proven these
scenarios to be devastating to our progress.

 I did obtain an opinion from the State Forester regarding management of the pipeline cut-over
area.

 Somehow, we managed to find time to meet regarding our strategic plan to measure first year
accomplishments and set goals.

 I have no unmet requests for assistance from WPOA, or for that matter the County of Nelson.

Update from Dennis Russell – Police Department: 

 Increased reports of quality of life issues in the Valley. Improved visibility through patrols, focused
area checks and traffic enforcement.
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 Remote view cameras operational at two intersections. Monocan and Hwy. 151 and Rodes Farm
and Rodes Valley Drives.

 RADAR trailer deployed to Laurel Springs Drive (landing zone) then Blackrock Circle in response
to reported concerns called in by our customers.

 Bear issues on the Mountain. Working with Deputy Director of Infrastructure, Department of
Game and Inland Fisheries and educating our homeowners to combat increased bear activity.

 New part-time Dispatcher hired and in process of filling one of two Police Officer vacancies.

 Virtual acceptance of our Agency’s Reaccreditation with the Virginia Law Enforcement
Accreditation Program.

Firefly Update: 

 Multiple sub-contractor’s splicing crews working to connect owners with service.  Most of the activity is on
the mountain with the goal of having all customers that have signed up, with service before Winter.

ACP Update: 

 WPOA submitted a filing to FERC about the easement restoration.  No news yet on the outcome.

 WPOA is consulting with TWNF, VA Dept of Forestry, Jerry B. (Geologist), and others on what is
best for the property.

 Our contacts with ACP suggest ACP is willing to work with us on a solution and agree that the
site warrants discussion.

BRP Exit Project: 

 Survey work (plant life and topography) complete.  Preliminary road design is complete.  These
have been shared with NPS with additional meetings/discussions expected.  This is not going to
be a quick process.  We anticipate a lot of additional meetings.  While we are optimistic, we are a
long way from any sort of final approval. WPOA must reimburse all NPS/BRP expenses, even if
the project is denied.

Carbon Credit Update: 

 COVID 19 is slowing the process down.  Per Chandler: The pandemic is having some operational
and logistical impacts and ACR is backed up. Demand remains high.

COVID 19 Operational Update: 

 Weekly owner updates continue.  While most owners likely appreciate the information, some
remain frustrated.  Most of the frustration is focused on our efforts to inform owners about COVID
data, remaining vigilant, wearing masks, etc.

 WPOA offices are staffed 8-5 Monday through Friday.  Because of the risk, we continue to
request owners call ahead in hopes that we can avoid unnecessary office visits.  All persons
entering the building are required to wear masks.  When not working remotely, staff are working
alternating shifts to limit how many are in the building at one time.  When in the office, we are
wearing masks when moving through common area or visiting other offices.

 Nelson County active COVID cases jumped 50% in less than one week.  Protective measures put
in place in April (office closure, most staff working remotely) are likely to be put back in place
soon and could last through the Fall, maybe Winter.

 911 calls for police assistance have increased in recent months.  Domestic violence, neighbor
disagreements, etc.

 All WPOA facilities are being cleaned more frequently.

 Pool season has been incredibly difficult on WPOA Staff.

 Playgrounds, Rodes Farm Tennis and Pickleball Courts remain open with restrictions/rules.

 Tuckahoe Clubhouse is open with only a small number of owners using the facility.  (Quilters and
Bridge)



6 

 While no WPOA staff have tested positive for the virus, we have had a few instances where staff
were asked to stay home and quarantine until test results came back.  We are taking the concern
seriously and discussing the challenge regularly.  We are adjusting operationally to minimize the
chances staff could infect others.

 While COVID remains an enormous challenge to all, the pressure on working families is
enormous.  These stresses include balancing childcare and work, work stress, lost income, threat

of lost income, family health, difficulty getting time off and no place to go.  And when not at work,
filling the role as a teacher, while being parent and spouse.  The fact that WPOA staff continue to
serve/function at a very high level is incredible and shows the level of dedication to the
community.

COMMITTEE AND ASSIGNMENT UPDATES: 

Carbon Credits: See Executive Director report 

Tuckahoe Clubhouse: Karen Asher. A decision was made to reschedule the annual flea 
market until Spring 2021. Bridge Group is meeting with social distancing, sanitizing, and 
temperature controls. Book groups are distancing on the patio. A few new welcomed 
handicapped parking spaces have been constructed in the back of the building. At this time the 
November 3, 2020 voting in person (Presidential election) is still a go at Tuckahoe.  

Nature Foundation: Bill wanted to report on the WPOA Ravens Roost project being a 
huge success and thinks going ahead with benches would be a big asset.  TWNF Ott Golf 
Tournament is 9/11/2020. The last meeting was a rather long budget related meeting. Work on 
their membership list is ongoing. Outside programs have been modified but inside programs 
remain a problem with COVID-19 restrictions.  The endowment program is ongoing.  

RESORT UPDATE- Mark Fischer 

While the pandemic had a major negative impact on revenues and operations, there are some 
bright spots. The influx in new owners is positive and memberships are selling.  Real Estate sales are 
double from this time last year. The resort shutdown created a sudden and huge lay off. A lack of 
personnel to maintain the resort, leaves it looking a little “shabby”, creating a level of frustration. The 
Resort is hiring again and has lots of openings as things turn around. Leisure lodging is up with bookings 
coming just days before the check ins. Mark is drafting a letter to be sent to all property owners here at 
Wintergreen. While it may not be apparent on the surface, 15 Million has been spent on the resort in 4 
years.  Winter COVID restrictions are a big unknown at this point. 50% of Revenue comes during ski 
season.  

New Business: None
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Old Business Items: 

Karen reported on Here to Stay Wintergreen. They are diligently working on their 501 c 3 status. 
Thomas Jefferson planning district is helping with their start up. COVID-19 made it much harder to 
provide services as only non-contact services can be provided. (Interestingly enough, the Friends of 
Wintergreen survey showed an interest in a totally different type of service, concierge type).   

Wintergreen Overlook: see Executive Directors report. 

Blue Ridge Parkway Exit Update: see Executive Directors report. 

Asphalt & Surface Treatment: 2020 nearing completion. 
 Wintergreen Drive asphalt scheduled for Spring 2021 

COB – updates complete and landscaping project ongoing. 

CLOSING COMMENTS: 

In light of COVID-19, this will be the perfect year to do a livestream/online annual meeting on 
November 7, 2020. There is no election this year, as no board member terms expire in 2020. The budget 
can be presented by the Treasurer, and the Executive Directors report done by live stream with owner’s 
questions presented beforehand and addressed live.  Jay reported we will be fine tuning this in the next 
month and figuring out how to also have live questions and answers.    

Mr. Ely adjourned the meeting at 3:08 PM

Scheduled Meeting Dates:  

November 7, 2020 – Saturday - Annual Meeting – no election – Live Streaming format.

November 7, 2020 – Board Meeting COB – Officers election

Today’s Web Site Update: www.wtgpoa.org 



AMENDED AND REST A TED 

BY-LAWS 

OF 

WINTERGREEN PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. 

As Amended 4/20/18 

ARTICLE I 

NAME AND LOCATION 

The name of the corporation is WINTERGREEN PROPERTY OWNERS 

ASSOCIATION, INC. (the "Association"), and its principal office is located at 88 Wintergreen 

Drive, Wintergreen Resort, Virginia 22967, in Nelson County, Virginia. 

ARTICLE II 

ASSOCIATION DOCUMENTS 

Section 1. Incorporation by Reference. The provisions of the Amended and 

Restated Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions of the Wintergreen Property Owners 

Association, dated February 1, 2000, and duly recorded in the Clerk's Office of the Circuit Court 

of Nelson County, Virginia, in Deed Book 464, page 793, et seq., and in the Clerk's Office of the 

Circuit Court of Augusta County, Virginia, as Instrument Number 000002168, as the same may 

now or in the future be amended (the ''Declaration"), are incorporated in and made patt of these 

By-laws by this reference. 

Section 2. Difference or Inconsistency. These By-laws shall be construed so as 

not to conflict with the A1ticles of Incorporation of the Association or the Declaration 

(collectively, the By�laws, the Articles of Incorporation of the Association, and the Declaration, 

all as amended from time to time, are refened to as the "Association Documents"). The 

Declaration shall control if there is any conflict among the Association Documents, except as to 

matters of compliance with the Virginia Non-stock Corporation Act, Chapter 10 of Title 13. l of 



the Code of Virginia (the "Act"), in which case the Articles of Incorporation shall control. The 

provisions of the By-laws shall control over any conflicting provision of any rule, regulation or 

other resolution adopted pursuant to any of the Association Documents. Specific provisions 

shall control general provisions, except that a construction consistent with Virginia law shall in 

all cases control over any construction inconsistent with Virginia law. The Association 

Documents shall be construed together and shall be deemed to incorporate one another in full. 

Any requirements as to the content of one shall be deemed satisfied if the deficiency can be 

cured by reference to any of the others. 

Section 3. Defined Terms. All terms defined in the Declaration shall have the 

same meanings herein as in the Declaration, unless a different meeting is clearly required by the 

context in which such terms are used in these By-laws, 

ARTICLE III 

PURPOSES OF THE ASSOCIATION 

The Association is created for the purpose of acting as a "community 

association", as that term is defined in Section 13.1-814.l(A) of the Code of Virginia (1950), as 

amended, supplemented or replaced from time to time (the "Code of Virginia"), for Wintergreen 

(the "Property", as that tenn is defined in the Declaration), located in Nelson County and 

Augusta County, Virginia, to enforce and administer the Declaration and to exercise all rights 

granted to, and carry out all duties imposed upon, the Association therein. The powers, duties 

and responsibilities of the Association shall be limited (i) to those which arc expressly or by 

implication granted to or imposed upon it by the Code of Virginia or other applicable law, (i) to 

those which are expressly or by implication granted to or imposed upon it by the Declaration, 

and (ii) by the tenns of all easements encumbering the Property, and shall include such powers, 
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duties and responsibilities which are reasonably necessary to effectively execute and undertake 

such purposes for the benefit of the Members and to effectively administer its corporate affairs as 

a non-stock corporation pursuant to, and to the extent authorized by, the Act. 

ARTICLE IV 

MEMBERS 

Section 1. Membership. Every Owner shall be a Member of the Association. 

The membership of the Association shall consist of the three classes specified in Section 2 of 

Article III of the Declaration, namely the Type "A" Members, the Type "B" Members, and the 

Type "D" Member. 

Section 2. Voting Rights. 

(a) The respective voting rights of the Type "A" Members, the Type "B"

Members, and the Type "D" Member shall not be equal and shall be as set forth in Section 2 of 

Article III of the Declaration. 

(b) In the event the land records of Nelson County and Augusta County,

Virginia, indicate that any Lot is owned of record by a corporate entity or other entity that is not 

a natural person or is owned of record in the name of two or more persons or entities, such record 

owner or owners shall file with the Secretary of the Association an instrument signed by all such 

record owners designating one natural person to cast the vote or votes which are attributable to 

such Lot. The Association may rely upon this instrument for all purposes related to notice or 

voting with respect to the record owners of such Lot, and, to the extent possible, the principles of 

this Section 2(b) shall apply to the execution of proxies, waivers, consents, or objections and for 

the purposes of ascertaining the presence of a quorum. 

Section 3, Proxies. Each Member shall be entitled to name a proxy to cast any 

votes to which such Member is entitled. Proxies shall be appointed in the manner set forth in 
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Section 13.l-847(B) of tbe Code of Virginia, which may include electronic transmission. Every 

proxy shall be revocable and shall automatically cease upon conveyance by the Member of his 

Lot. 

Section 4. Delinguency. No Member may vote at any meeting of the Association 

or in any referendum, consent to any action without a meeting, or be elected to serve on the 

Board of Directors if payment by such Member of any financial obligation to the Association is 

delinquent more than sixty days and the amount necessary to bring the account current has not 

been paid at the time of such vote, consent or election. 

ARTICLEV 

MEETING AND VOTING OF MEMBERS 

Section 1. Annual Meetings. An annual meeting of the Members (an "Annual 

Meeting") shall be held at 10 o'clock a.m. on a Saturday in October or November each year, or 

at such other time and date as the Board of Directors may dete1mine is in the best interests of the 

Association. Annual Meetings of the Members shall be held at the Property. 

Section 2. Special Meetings. The President or a majority of the then-serving 

members of the Board of Directors may call meetings of the Members in addition to the Annual 

Meeting of Members ( each such meeting, a "Special Meeting"). Special Meetings may also be 

called upon written request of Members entitled to cast 25% of all the votes of all the Type "A" 

Members, the Type "B" Members, and the Type "D" Member, voting together as a single voting 

group. Special Meetings of the Members shall be held at the Property. 

Section 3. Participation by Conference Telephone. Any or all Members may 

participate in an Annual Meeting or a Special Meeting by use of conference telephone or any 

other means of communication by which all Members participating may simultaneously hear 
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each other during the meeting, A Member participating in a meeting by such means shall be 

deemed to be present in person at the meeting. 

Section 4. Notice of Meetings. Except as otherwise expressly provided in these 

By-laws, written notice of each meeting of the Members specifying the place, day and hour of 

the meeting, and in the case of a Special Meeting, the puq:,ose or purposes of the meeting, shall 

be given by, or at the direction of, the Secretary or person authorized to call the meeting, by 

facsimile telecommunication or other fonn of electronic transmission consented to by the 

Member to whom the notice is given, or by mailing a copy of such notice, postage prepaid, 

addressed to the Member's address last appearing on the books of the Association, or supplied by 

such Member to the Association for the purpose of notice, to each Member entitled to vote at the 

meeting, no less than ten or more than sixty days before the meeting date; provided that notice of 

a meeting to act on an amendment of the Articles of Incorporation or the Declaration, a plan of 

merger or domestication, a proposed sale of assets or the dissolution of the Association shall be 

given not less than thirty nor more than sixty days before the meeting date. Nothing in these By

laws shall prohibit or deny any Member the right to waive, in writing or as otherwise provided 

by law, notice of a meeting. 

Section 5. Quorum and Voting at Meetings. Except as may otherwise be 

provided by these By-laws, at any meeting, the presence of Members or their proxies entitled to 

cast 20% of the total votes entitled to be cast shall constitute a quorum for any action by the 

Members. If, however, such quorum shall not be present or represented at any meeting, a simple 

majority (more than 50%) of the Members present at the meeting and entitled to vote thereat 

shall have the power to adjourn the meeting from time to time, without notice other than 

announcement at the meeting, until a quorum as aforesaid shall be present or be represented. As 
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specified in Section 2 of Article VllI of the Declaration, amendments to the Declaration require a 

greater percentage of votes represented in person or by proxy to constitute a quorum ( either 60% 

or 50% of the total votes entitled to be cast by the Members, as applicable) and require approval 

by a greater prop011ion (75% of the votes actually cast by the Members, provided that such 

propo11ion represents at least a simple majority of the votes entitled to be cast by the Members 

present in person or represented by proxy at a duly held meeting at which a quorum is present, as 

required by Section 13.1-849 of the Code of Virginia). Unless a greater or di fferent proportion is 

required by the Act or by the Association Documents, approval by a simple majority (more than 

50%) of the votes entitled to be cast by the Members who are present in person or represented by 

proxy at a duly held meeting at which a quorum is present shall be necessary for the adoption of 

any other matter voted upon by the Members. Members entitled to vote as a separate voting 

group may take action on a matter at a meeting only if a quorum of those Members exists with 

respect to that matter. 

Section 6. Record Date: List of Members. The date for determining which 

Members are entitled to vote at each meeting of the Members as reflected by the land records of 

Nelson County and Augusta County, Virginia (the "Record Date") shall be at the close of 

business on the day before the effective date of the notice of such meeting, unless otherwise 

fixed by the Board of Directors as allowed by Section 13.1-844 of the Code of Virginia, and 

shall be stated in such notice. The Board of Directors shall not fix a Record Date more than 

seventy days before the meeting or action requiring a detennination of Members, nor shall the 

Board of Directors set a Record Date retroactively. At least ten days before each meeting, the 

Secretary shall make a complete list of the Members entitled to vote at such meeting, with the 
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address of each, available for review before and during the meeting. The list shall be current as 

of the Record Date. 

Section 7. Matters to be Brought Before Meetings. Except as otherwise provided 

by law and Section 3 of Article VI of these By-laws, at any Annual or Special Meeting of 

Members, only such business shall be conducted as shall have been properly brought before the 

meeting in accordance with this Section 6 of A11icle V. [n order to be properly brought before 

the meeting, such business must either have been: (a) specified in the meeting notice, (b) brought 

before the meeting at the direction of the Board of Directors or the officer presiding over the 

meeting, or (c) specified in a written notice given by or on behalf of a Member of record on the 

Record Date for such meeting and entitled to vote at the meeting or a duly authorized proxy for 

such Member, in accordance with the following requirements ("Member Notice"). A Member 

Notice must be given, either by personal delivery or by U.S. mail, postage prepaid, to the 

Secretary of the Association, (i) in the case of business to be brought before a Special Meeting, 

not more than five days after the date of the initial meeting notice, and (ii) in the case of business 

to be brought before an Annual Meeting, not less than thirty days prior to the first anniversary 

date of the initial notice given to Members of record for the previous Annual Meeting. The 

Member Notice shall set forth: (A) a full description of each such item of business proposed; 

(B) the name and address of the Member making the proposal; and (C) a representation that the

Member is entitled to vote at such meeting and intends to appear in person or by proxy at the 

meeting. If any item of business brought before the meeting involves a nomination for director, 

the Member must comply with the requirements of Section 3 of Article VI of these By-laws. 

Section 8. Conduct of the Meeting. At each meeting of Members, the President 

of the Association shall preside as chairman of the meeting. If the President is unable to serve, 
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the Vice-President shall preside as chairman of the meeting, and if the Vice-President is unable 

to serve, the chairman shall be appointed as provided by the Board of Directors. The chai1man 

shall determine the order of business and shall have the authority to establish rules for the 

conduct of the meeting. The chahman shall announce at the meeting when the polls will open 

and close for each matter voted upon. If no announcement is made, the polls shall be deemed to 

have opened at the beginning of the meeting and to close upon the final adjournment of the 

meeting. 

Section 9. Referendum. In the sole discretion of the Board of Directors, elections 

and other matters requiring a vote of the Members may be submitted to a referendum of the 

Members on a ballot, by mail or at polling places. Ballots shall be returned to the Secretary by 

the date specified on the ballot. The Board of Directors shall detennine the method of voting, 

the form of all ballots, the wording of questions thereon, the deadline for return of ballots and the 

number and location of polling places, if any. Where a vote on any question is required by law 

to be taken at a meeting, each referendum ballot on such question shall be considered a proxy 

which directs the Secretary to cast such votes as are set forth on such ballot. 

Section I 0. Advisory Referendum. The Board of Directors may include on any 

ballot questions on which it seeks an advisory vote. Members may suggest questions for an 

advisory vote which shall be evaluated by the Board for consistency with the exercise of its 

duties and responsibilities and with the Association Documents. In any advisory vote, each such 

question on a ballot shall indicate that the vote is for advisory purposes only. 

ARTICLE VI 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Section 1. Number. The affairs and administration of the Association and the 

management and the maintenance of the Property shall be the responsibility of a Board of 
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Directors comprised of not less than five and not more than eleven directors. The number shall 

be fixed by the directors from time to time. Unless otherwise specifically provided in the Act or 

the Association Documents, all rights, powers, easements, obligations and duties of the 

Association may be performed or enforced by the Board of Directors on behalf of the 

Association. 

Section 2. Election and Term. 

(a) Regardless of the size of the board as fixed by the directors from time to

time, there shall be at all times two directors appointed by the Type "D" Member (the "Resort 

Directors") and all other directors shall be designated as the "At-Large Directors." At least one 

of the At-Large Director positions shall be filled by an Owner of either a Lot or a Dwelling Unit 

located in the Valley Village portion of the Property, as depicted on the Master Plan, and at least 

one of the At-Large Director positions shall be filled by an Owner of either a Lot or a Dwelling 

Unit located in the Mountain Village pm1ion of the Property, as depicted on the Master Plan. 

Every At-Large Director must be an Owner of either a Lot or Dwelling Unit, who is current in 

the payment of Association dues and is not otherwise in violation of the Declaration or the 

General Covenants. 

(b) Each Director elected shall hold office for a four-year term and until his

or her successor is duly elected unless he or she shall sooner resign or be removed or otherwise 

cease to serve. Each duly elected Director will be limited to serving no more than two 

consecutive four-year terms; provided, however, that such individual may serve, if elected, for an 

additional term or two terms once such individual has stayed off the Board for a period of at least 

one year. 
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The executive director, president or nominating committee may recommend to extend the service 

of an existing Director whose term is expiring for a one-year period because of specific 

experience or expertise. Any such tenn extension must be approved by the vote of the majority 

of the Board. Such extending Director shall be a member in addition to the normal full 

complement of Directors on the Board. Any extension of the term of an existing Board member 

would preclude that individual from standing for election for at least one year after the expiration 

of the extended term. 

( c) At every third succeeding Annual Meeting, the Type "D" Member or its

proxy shall appoint each of the two Resort Directors. The Type "A" Members and the Type "B" 

Members are not entitled to cast votes with respect to the Resort Directors. 

(d) At each Annual Meeting, the Type "A" Members shall vote as a voting

group in the election of that class of At-Large Directors whose terms expire at the Annual 

Meeting. At-Large Directors shall be elected by a plurality of the votes cast by the Type "A" 

Members by secret written ballot. At each such election, each Type "A" Member, or his proxy, 

may cast, for each At-Large Director to be elected at that time, one vote for each Residential Lot 

or Family Dwelling Unit which the Type "A" Member owns. Cumulative voting is not 

permitted. Type "B" Members and the Type "D" Member are not entitled to cast votes with 

respect to the At-Large Directors. 

Section 3. Nomination of At-Large Directors. Nominations for the election 

of At-Large Directors shall be made by a Nominating Committee. The Nominating Committee 

shall consist of a chairman, who shall be a member of the Board of Directors, and at least two 
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Members of the Association. The Nominating Committee shall be appointed by the Board of 

Directors and shall serve from the close of the Annual Meeting at which such appointment is 

announced until the close of the next Annual Meeting at which directors are elected. The 

Nominating Committee shall nominate at least one candidate for each At-Large Director position 

on the Board of Directors. Nominations may not be made from the floor at the Annual Meeting 

of the Members; however, any Type "A" Member entitled to vote in the election of At-Large 

Directors may nominate one or more persons for election at a meeting of Members, but only if 

written notice of such Member's intent to make such nomination(s) was given, either by personal 

delivery or by U.S. mail, postage prepaid, to the Secretary of the Association not less than thirty 

days prior to the first anniversary date of the initial notice given to Members of record for the 

previous Annual Meeting, provided, however, that such notice shall not be required to be given 

more than ninety days prior to the Annual Meeting of Members. Each such notice shall set forth: 

(a) the name and address of the Member who intends to make the nomination and of the

person(s) to be nominated; (b) a representation that the Member is entitled to vote in the election 

of At-Large Directors at the meeting and intends to appear in person or by proxy at the meeting 

to nominate the person(s) specified in the notice; and (c) the written consent of each nominee to 

serve as an At-Large Director of the Association if so elected. The presiding officer at any 

meeting may refuse to acknowledge the nomination of any person not made in compliance with 

the foregoing sentence. 

Section 4. Removal. At any meeting of Members, by a majority of votes entitled 

to be cast by the Type "A" Members who are present in person or represented by proxy at the 

meeting, the Type "A" Members, voting as a voting group, may remove, with or without cause, 

any At-Large Director. Upon such a removal, the Type "A" Members, voting as a voting group, 
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shall have the right to elect a director to fill the vacancy. At any time, the Type "D" Member 

may remove, with or without cause, either or both of the Resort Directors, and, upon such a 

removal, the Type "D" Member shall have the right to appoint a director to fill the vacancy. In 

addition, any director who has been absent from three consecutive regular meetings of the Board 

of Directors may be removed by a majority of the then-serving members of the Board of 

Directors. Upon such a removal by the Board of Directors of an At-Large Director, the vacancy 

shall be filled by the affirmative vote of a majority of the At-Large Directors remaining in office, 

even if the At-Large Directors remaining in office constitute fewer than a quorum of the Board 

of Directors, or by a sole remaining At-Large Director. Upon such a removal by the Board of 

Directors of a Resort Director, the Type "D" Member shall have the right to appoint a director to 

fill the vacancy. The term of a director elected or appointed to fill a vacancy under the terms of 

this Section 4 of Article VI shall expire at the next Annual Meeting, at which time he may be 

elected or appointed, as applicable, by the applicable Members to serve until the next Annual 

Meeting at which directors of the same class are elected or at which Resort Directors are 

appointed, as applicable, and, despite the expiration of the term, the director shall continue to 

serve until his successor has been duly elected or appointed and has qualilied. 

Section 5. Resignation. Any director may resign at any time by giving 

written notice to the Board of Directors, the President or the Secretary. Such resignation shall 

take effect on the date of receipt of such notice or at any later time specified therein, and, unless 

otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it 

effective. Upon the resignation of an At-Large Director, the vacancy shall be filled by the 

affirmative vote of a majority of the AtwLarge Directors remaining in office, even if the At-Large 

Directors remaining in office constitute fewer than a quorum of the Board of Directors, or by a 
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sole remaining At-Large Director. Upon the resignation of a Resort Director, the Type "D" 

Member shall have the right to appoint a director to fill the vacancy. The term of a director 

elected or appointed to fill a vacancy under the terms of this Section 5 of Article VI shall expire 

at the next Annual Meeting, at which time he may be elected or appointed, as applicable, by the 

applicable Members to serve until the next Annual Meeting at which directors of the same class 

are elected or at which Resort Directors are appointed, as applicable, and, despite the expiration 

of the term, the director shall continue to serve until his successor has been duly elected or 

appointed and has qualified. 

Section 6. Death of a Director; Other Vacancies. Upon the death of an At-

Large Director, the vacancy shall be filled by the affirmative vote of a majority of the At-Large 

Directors remaining in office, even if the At-Large Directors remaining in office constitute fewer 

than a quorum of the Board of Directors, or by a sole remaining At-Large Director. Upon the 

death of a Resort Director, the Type "D" Member shall have the right to appoint a director to fill 

the vacancy. Subject to the provisions of Sections 4, 5 and 6 of this Article VI, any other 

vacancy on the Board of Directors, including a vacancy resulting from an increase in the number 

of directors, shall be filled by the affirmative vote of a majority of the directors remaining in 

office, even if the directors remaining in office constitute fewer than a quorum of the Board of 

Directors, or by a sole remaining director. The term of a director elected or appointed to fill a 

vacancy under the terms of this Section 6 of Article VI shall expire at the next Annual Meeting, 

at which time he may be elected or appointed, as applicable, by the applicable Members to serve 

until the next Annual Meeting at which directors of the same class are elected or at which Resort 

Directors are appointed, as applicable, and, despite the expiration of the term, the director shall 

continue to serve until his successor has been duly elected or appointed and has qualified. 
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Section 7. Regular Meetings. The Board of Directors shall hold a regular 

meeting immediately after the Annual Meeting of the Members of the Association, or at such 

other time as the Board of Directors may detennine, for the purposes of electing officers and the 

consideration of any other business that may properly be brought before the meeting. Other 

regular meetings shall be held at such other times as the Board of Directors may detennine. 

Section 8. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Directors shall be 

held when called by the President of the Association or by any two directoi-s, after not less than 

three days written notice to each director, except that notice can be waived in writing or as 

otherwise provided by law. Notice may be given by electronic transmission, including facsimile 

telecommunication and electronic mail, consented to by the director to whom the notice is given. 

Section 9. Executive Sessions. All meetings of the Board of Directors shall be 

open to Members as observers, except that the President or presiding officer may call the Board 

into executive session on sensitive matters such as personnel, litigation strategy or hearings with 

respect to violations of the Association Documents. Any final action taken by the Board in 

executive session shall be recorded in the minutes. 

Section 10. Quorum and Voting. A majority of the number of directors in office 

immediately before the meeting begins shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. 

If a quorum is present when a vote is taken, the affirmative vote of a majority of directors present 

is the act of the Board of Directors, 

Section 11. Patiicipation by Conference Telephone. The Board of Directors may 

permit any or all directors to pai1icipate in a meeting of the directors by, or conduct the meeting 

through the use of, conference telephone or any other means of communication by which all 

directors participating may simultaneously hear each other during the meeting. A director 
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participating in a meeting by such means shall be deemed to be present in person at the meeting. 

When a meeting is so conducted, a written record shall be made of the action taken at such 

meeting. 

Section 12. Action Taken Without a Meeting. Action required or permitted to be 

taken by the Board of Directors may be taken without a meeting if each director signs a consent 

describing the action to be taken and delivers it to the Association. Any action so approved shall 

have the same effect as though taken at a meeting of the directors and may be described as such 

in any document. The signing of one or more written consents may be accomplished through 

electronic transmission, including facsimile telecommunication and electronic mail, as set forth 

in the Code of Virginia. 

Section 13. Compensation. No director shall receive compensation for any 

service he may render to the Association as a director. However, any director may be 

reimbursed for his actual reasonable expenses incurred in the performance of his duties. 
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ARTICLE VII 

POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

The business and affairs of the Association shall be administered by and the 

management and maintenance of the Property shall be performed by the Board of Directors 

elected in accordance with the procedures and for the terms of office set forth in the Association 

Documents. The Board of Directors shall have all of the powers and duties necessary for the 

administration of the affairs of the Association and may do all such acts and things as are 

required by the Act or the Association Documents to be exercised and done by the Association. 

In addition to the duties imposed by any other provision of the Association Documents or by any 

resolution of the Association that may hereafter be adopted, the Board shall perform the 

following duties and take the following actions on behalf of the Association: 

( 1) Provide goods and services to the Members in accordance with the

Association Documents, and provide for maintenance of the Common Area and, to the extent 

provided in the Association Documents, of the Lots. 

(2) Designate, hire, dismiss and, where appropriate, compensate the personnel

necessary to provide for the maintenance of the Common Area and, to the extent provided in the 

Association Documents, of the Lots, and provide goods and services to the Members, as well as 

purchase equipment, supplies and materials to be used by such personnel in the performance of 

their duties. 

(3), Collect the assessments, deposit the proceeds thereof in depositories 

designated by the Board of Directors and use the proceeds to carry out the maintenance of the 

Property to the extent the Association is so authorized by the Association Documents. 

(4) Adopt and amend any reasonable Rules and Regulations not inconsistent

with the Association Documents and establish and enforce penalties for the infraction thereof. 
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(5) Open bank accounts on behalf of the Association and designate the

signatories thereon in accordance with the financial policies of the Association, as recommended 

by the Association's auditors and approved by the Board, as they may be amended from time to 

time (collectively, the "Financial Authority Policy"). 

(6) Enforce by legal means the provisions of the Association Documents.

(7) Act with respect to all matters arising out of any eminent domain

proceeding affecting the Common Area. 

(8) Notify the Members of any litigation against the Association involving a

claim in excess of the amount of the annual budget. 

(9) Obtain and caITy insurance against casualties and liabilities, as provided in

A1iicle VI of the Declaration, pay the premiums therefor and adjust and settle any claims 

thereunder. 

( 10) Pay the cost of all authorized goods and services rendered to the

Association and not billed to Owners of individual Lots or otherwise provided for in Article VI 

of the Declaration. 

(11) Notify a Mortgagee of any default in paying assessments for Common

Expenses by a Member (which remains uncured for sixty days) or for any other default, 

simultaneously with the notice sent to the defaulting Member. 

(12) Acquire, hold and dispose of Lots and mortgage the same without the

prior approval of the Association if such expenditures and hypothecations are included in the 

budget. 

(13) Charge reasonable fees for the use of the Common Area and for services.
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(14) Suspend the right of any Member or other occupant of a Lot, and the right

of such Person's household, guests, employees, customers, tenants, agents and invitees to use the 

Common Area in accordance with Article IV of the Declaration. 

(15) Prepare an annual budget in accordance with A1ticle V of the Declaration.

( 16) Adopt an annual budget and make assessments against the Members to

defray the Common Expenses of the Association, establish the means and methods of collecting 

such assessments from the Members and establish the period of the installment payment, if any, 

of the annual assessment for Common Expenses. 

( 17) Borrow money on behalf of the Association, when required for any valid

purpose; provided, however, that, either a simple majority vote of Members obtained at a 

meeting held for such purpose or written approval by Members entitled to cast more than 50% of 

the total number of votes shall be required to bonow any sum in excess ·of the total annual 

assessment for Common Expenses for that fiscal year and mortgage any of the Common Area 

owned in foe simple by the Association. 

(18) Execute deeds, plats of re-subdivision, and applications for construction

permits for the Common Area owned in fee simple by the Association, as may be necessary or 

desirable in the normal course of the orderly development of the Property. 

( 19) Dedicate or transfer any portion of the Common Area owned in fee simple

by the Association or grant easements, rights-of-way or licenses over and through the Common 

Area owned in fee simple by the Association pursuant to Article VI of the Declaration. 

(20) Declare the office of a member of the Board of Directors to be vacant in

the event such director, whether an At-Large Director or a Resort Director, shall be absent from 

three consecutive regular meetings of the Board of Directors. 
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(21) Amend or repeal these By-laws or adopt new by-laws, provided that the

Members in adopting any amendment to the By-laws may provide that the Board of Directors 

may not further amend or repeal such amendment. 

(22) Cause to be kept a complete record of all its acts and corporate affairs and

to present a statement thereof to the Members at the Annual Meeting of the Members or at any 

Special Meetings. 

(23) Issue, or cause an appropriate officer to issue, upon written demand by any

Member, an Association Disclosure Packet and/or a written statement setting fmih whether or 

not any financial obligation has been paid and the amount of all unpaid financial obligations due, 

if applicable. If a statement states that a financial obligation has been paid, such statement shall 

be conclusive evidence of such payment. A reasonable charge may be made by the Board of 

Directors for the preparation and issuance of these documents. 

(24) Cause all officers or employees having fiscal responsibilities to be bonded

at an amount deemed appropriate. 

(25) Do anything else not inconsistent with the Act or the Association

Documents. 

ARTICLE VIII 

COMMITTEES 

Section 1. Committees of Directors; Specific Assignments. 

(a) The Board of Directors, by resolution adopted by a majority of all the

directors in office when the action is taken, may designate one or more committees, each of 

which shall consist of two or more directors, which committees, to the extent provided in the 

resolution, shall have and exercise the authority of the Board of Directors in the management of 

the affairs of the Association, provided that, however, no such committee shall have the authority 
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of the Board of Directors to approve or recommend to Members action that the Act requires to 

be approved by Members; fill vacancies on the Board of Directors or on any of its committees; 

amend the At1icles of Incorporation; adopt, amend, or repeal these By-laws; or approve a plan of 

merger. Each such committee shall present a report of its actions to the Board of Directors at 

every regular meeting of the Board of Directors or at a special meeting called for such purpose. 

(b) In addition to designating committees of two or more directors, the Board

of Directors, by resolution adopted by a majority of all the directors in office when the action is 

taken, may specifically assign certain duties to a single director who shall exercise and discharge 

such duties as the Board of Directors may assign to him, provided that such single director may 

not exercise the authority of the Board of Directors in the management of the affairs of the 

Association. Such single director shall present a report of his actions to the Board of Directors at 

every regular meeting of the Board of Directors or at a special meeting called for such purpose. 

Section 2. Executive Committee. The Board of Directors may delegate to an 

Executive Committee the authority to act on behalf of the Board on such matters which may 

arise between meetings of the Board as the Board deems appropriate. 

Section 3. Architectural Review. The Board of Directors shall establish an 

Architectural Review Board as a committee of the Board of Directors as set fo11h in A11icle VII 

of the Declaration. 

Section 4. Rules. Each committee may adopt rules for its own government not 

inconsistent with the Act, the At1icles of Incorporation, these By-laws, the terms of the 

resolution of the Board of Directors designating the committee, or rules adopted by the Board of 

Directors. 
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Section 5. Applicability of By-laws. The provisions of Article VI of these By

laws regarding meetings, action without meetings, notice and waiver of notice, and quorum and 

voting requirements of the Board of Directors shall apply to each committee and its members as 

well. 

ARTICLE IX 

OFFICERS AND THEIR DUTIES 

Section 1. Enumeration of Offices. The officers of this Association shall be the 

President, Vice-President, Secretary and Treasurer, and such other officers as the Board of 

Directors may from time to time by resolution create. 

Section 2. Election of Officers. The election of officers shall take place at the 

first regular meeting of the Board of Directors after the Annual Meeting of the Members in each 

year. 

Section 3. Tenn. The officers of this Association shall be elected annually by the 

directors and each shall hold office for one year and until his successor is duly elected and has 

qualified, unless he shall sooner resign, or shall be removed, or otherwise cease to serve. 

Section 4. Special Appointments. The directors may appoint such other officers 

as the affairs of the Association may require, each of whom shall hold office for such period, 

have such authority, and perform such duties, as the Board of Directors may, from time to time, 

determine. 

Section 5. Removal and Resignation. Any officer may be removed from office at 

any time with or without cause by the Board of Directors. Any officer may resign at any time by 

giving written notice to the Board of Directors, the President or the Secretary. Such resignation 

shall take effect on the date of receipt of such notice or at any later time specified therein, and 
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unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to 

make it effective. 

Section 6. Vacancies. A vacancy in any office shall be filled by the affirmative 

vote of a majority of the directors in office. The officer shall serve for the remainder of the term 

of the officer he replaces. 

Section 7. Multiple Offices. The offices of Secretary and Treasurer may be held 

by the same person. No person shall simultaneously hold more than one of any of the other 

offices except in the case of special offices created pursuant to Section 4 of this A11icle IX. 

Section 8. President. The President, who shall be chosen from among the 

directors, shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors and of the Members; shall have 

general and active direction of the business of the Association subject to the control of the Board 

of Directors; shall see to the execution of the resolutions of the Board of Directors and the 

Association; shall see that orders and resolutions of the Board are carried out; shall sign leases, 

mortgages, deeds and other written instruments affecting Association property if so required by 

the Board of Directors; shall exercise and discharge such other duties as the Board of Directors 

may delegate to him; and shall, in general, perfonn all the duties incident to the office of 

President. 

Section 9. Vice-President. The Vice-President shall act in the place and stead of 

the President in the event of his absence or inability or refusal to act, and shall exercise and 

discharge such other duties as the Board of Directors or President may delegate to him. 

Section 10. Secretary. The Secretary shall review the minutes of all meetings and 

proceedings of the Board of Directors and of the Members; shall have charge of such books and 

records as the Board of Directors may direct and as may be required by the Code of Virginia; 
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shall ensure that notice of meetings of the directors and of the Members and all other notices 

required be given by the Association; shall exercise and discharge such other duties as the 

Board of Directors may delegate to him; and shall, in general, perform all the duties incident to 

the office of Secretary. 

Section 11. Treasurer. The Treasurer shall review the financial records and 

reports prepared by the Deputy Director of Finance and Human Resources on a monthly basis; 

shall review audit documentation of the Association financial records; shall present current 

financial data at each scheduled meeting of the Board of Directors; shall present an annual 

budget and a statement of income and expenditures to the membership at its regular Annual 

Meeting, and deliver a copy of each to the Members; shall exercise and discharge such other 

duties as the Board of Directors may delegate to him; and shall, in general, perform all the duties 

incident to the office of Treasurer. 
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ARTICLE X 

ASSESSMENTS 

The Board of Directors shall determine, assess, collect, deposit, maintain, use, 

enforce and otherwise deal with the Annual Assessments, Additional Assessments, Individual 

Assessments, Optional Expenses, Reserves, and Fees as set f011h in A1iicle V of the Declaration. 

ARTICLE XI 

BOOKS AND RECORDS 

The books, records and papers of the Association shall, during regular business 

hours, be subject to inspection by a Member in accordance with the provisions of the Act. The 

Association may impose a reasonable charge, covering the costs of labor and material, for copies 

of any document provided to the Member. 

ARTICLE XII 

CORPORATE SEAL 

The Board of Directors may provide a suitable seal in circular form having within 

its circumference the words: WINTERGREEN PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. 

ARTICLE XIII 

MISCELLANEOUS 

The fiscal year of the Association shall be the calendar year. 

ARTICLE XIV 

AMENDMENTS 

These By-laws may be amended by a vote of a majority of the Board of Directors 

at any meeting of the Board of Directors or by a majority of votes cast by the Members, voting 

together as a single voting group, at any meeting of the Members, provided that: 

24 



(a) No such amendment shall be in conflict with, or cause these By-laws

as amended to be in conflict with, the Declaration or the Articles of Incorporation then in force 

and effect; 

(b) No such amendment shall have the effect of restricting the Association

or its Board of Directors, committees, officers or agents in the full exercise of all powers, duties 

of authority granted to them or to any of them by the Declaration as then in force and effect; 

(c) No such amendment shall be acted upon at any meeting of the Board

of Directors or any meeting of the Members unless written notice of such meeting has been 

mailed, postage pre-paid, to each director or Member entitled to vote at such meeting at least ten 

days in advance of such meeting, which notice shall state that an amendment to the By-laws will 

be considered at such meeting, shall set forth the proposed text of such amendment and shall set 

forth a fair summary of the reasons for which such amendment has been proposed; and 

(d) The Members in adopting any amendment to the By-laws may provide

that the Board of Directors may not further amend or repeal such amendment. 

ARTICLE XV 

CONSTRUCTION 

The following principles of construction shall apply: 

(a) The captions are provided only for reference, and shall not be deemed to

define, limit or otherwise affect the scope, meaning or effect of any provision of the document in 

which used. 

(b) The use of the masculine gender shall be deemed to include the feminine

and neuter, and the use of the singular shall be deemed to include the plural and vice versa, 

whenever the context so requires. 
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( c) Each provision of an Association Document is severable from every other

provision and the invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more provisions shall not change 

the meaning of or otherwise affect any other provision. To the extent that any provision of the 

Association Documents is found to be overly broad or unenforceable and a narrower or partially 

enforceable construction may be given to such provision, then the narrower or partially 

enforceable construction shall be applied and, to the extent lawful, the provision shall be 

enforced. 

ADOPTED: By the Board of Directors, effective February 19, 2010 

AMENDED: By the Board of Directors, effective April 20, 2018 
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AR TIC LES OF AMENDMENT AND RESTATEMENT 

OF 

WINTERGREEN PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. 

1. The name of the corporation immediately prior to restatement is Wintergreen

Property Owners Association, Inc. 

2. The restatement contains amendments to the Articles of Incorporation.

3, The text of the Amended and Restated Atticles oflncorporation of the corporation 

is attached hereto. 

4. The restatement was adopted by the corporation on August 22, 2008.

5. The restatement was proposed by the board of directors and submitted to the

members in accordance with the provisions of Chapter l O of Title 13 .1 of the Code of Virginia, 

and at a meeting of the members at which a quorum of each voting group was present, the total 

number of votes cast for and against the restatement by the members voting as a single voting 

group was: 

Total Votes Cast 

1904 

Total votes FOR 

1853 

Total votes AGAINST 

51 

Such vote, representing approval by 97.3% of all the votes cast, was sufficient for 

approval of the restatement by the corporation's members. 

Date: February 6, 2008 

WINTERGREEN PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. 

By: John Claman, President 
------------
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AMENDED AND RESTATED 

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION 

OF 
WINTERGREEN PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. 

ARTICLE I 

NAME 

The name of the corporation is Wintergreen Property Owners Association, Inc. 

ARTICLE II 

PURPOSES 

The corporation is a "community association," as defined in Sections 13.1-814.1 and 13.1-
870.l of the Virginia Nonstock Corporation Act, organized for the purposes of owning or having
under its care, custody or control certain real estate located in Nelson County and Augusta
County, Virginia, subject to the Amended and Restated Declaration of Covenants and
Restrictions of the Wintergreen Prope11y Owners Association, dated February 1, 2000, and duly
recorded in the Clerk's Office of the Circuit Court of Nelson County, Virginia, in Deed Book
464, page 793, et. seq., and in the Clerk's Office of the Circuit Coutt of Augusta County,
Virginia, as Instrument Number 000002168, as the same may now or in the future be amended
(the "Declaration"), which obligates a person by virtue of ownership of specific real estate to be
a member of the corporation.

ARTICLE III 

MEMBERS 

Section 1. Classes; Qualifications and Rights. The corporation shall have one or more 
classes of members as set forth in the Declaration. The designation of each class and the 
qualifications and rights, including, without limitation, voting rights, of the members of each 
class shall be set forth in the Declaration. 

Section 2. Quorum or Voting Requirements. The quorum and voting requirements for 
members shall be set forth in the by-laws. 

Section 3. Action without Meeting. Any action required or permitted by law to be taken at 
a meeting of members may be taken without a meeting and without prior notice, if the action is 
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taken by the members who would be entitled to vote at a meeting of members having voting 
power to cast not fewer than the minimum number (or numbers, in the case of voting by voting 
groups) of votes that would be necessary to authorize or take the action at a meeting at which all 
members entitled to vote thereon were present and voted. The action shall be evidenced by one 
or more written consents or electronic transmissions describing the action taken, signed by the 
members entitled to take such action without a meeting and delivered to the Secretary of the 
corporation for inclusion in the minutes or filing with the corporate records. 

ARTICLE IV 

DIRECTORS 

Section 1. Number. The number of directors shall be set forth in the by-laws. 

Section 2. Qualifications. The qualifications of directors shall be set forth in the by-laws. 

Section 3. Appointment or Election. The manner in which directors shall be appointed or 
elected by members shall be set forth in the by-laws. 

Section 4. Removal. The manner in which directors may be removed by members shall be 
set fo11h in the by-laws. 

Section 5. Vacancies. The manner in which vacancies on the board of directors shall be 
filled by members shall be set fo11h in the by-laws. 

Section 6. Terms. The terms of directors shall be set forth in the by-laws. 

ARTICLE V 

INDEMNIFICATION AND ELIMINATION 

OR LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 

Section 1. Indemnification of Directors and Officers. Except as provided in Section 2 of 
this A1ticlc, the corporation shall indemnify every individual made a party to a proceeding 
because he is or was a director or officer against liability incurred in the proceeding if: (i) he 
conducted himself in good faith; and (ii) he believed, in the case of conduct in his official 
capacity with the corporation, that his conduct was in its best interests, and, in all other cases, 
that his conduct was at least not opposed to its best interests; and (iii) he had no reasonable cause 
to believe, in the case of any criminal proceeding, that his conduct was unlawful. 

Section 2. Indemnification Not Permitted. The corporation shall not indemnify any 
individual against his willful misconduct or a knowing violation of the criminal law or against 
any liability incuned by him in any proceeding charging improper personal benefit to him, 
whether or not by or in the right of the corporation or involving action in his official capacity, in 
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which he was adjudged liable by a court of competent jurisdiction on the basis that personal 
benefit was improperly received by him. 

Section 3. Effect of Judgment or Conviction. The termination of a proceeding by 
judgment, order, settlement or conviction, or upon a plea of nolo contendere or its equivalent, is 
not, of itself, determinative that an individual did not meet the standard of conduct set fo11h in 
Section 1 of this Article or that the conduct of such individual constituted willful misconduct or a 
knowing violation of the criminal law. 

Section 4. Determination and Authorization. Unless ordered by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, any indemnification under Section 1 of this A11icle shall be made by the corporation 
only as authorized in the specific case upon a determination that indemnification of the 
individual is permissible in the circumstances because: (i) he met the standard of conduct set 
forth in Section 1 of this Article and, with respect to a proceeding by or in the right of the 
corporation in which such individual was adjudged liable to the corporation, he is fairly and 
reasonably entitled to indemnification in view of all of the relevant circumstances even though 
he was adjudged liable; and (ii) the conduct of such individual did not constitute willful 
misconduct or a knowing violation of the criminal law. 

Such determination shall be made: (i) by the board of directors by a majority vote of a 
quorum consisting of directors not at the time parties to the proceeding; or (ii) if such a quorum 
cannot be obtained, by a majority vote of a committee duly designated by the board of directors 
(in which designation directors who are parties may pa11icipate), consisting solely of two or more 
directors not at the time parties to the proceeding; or (iii) by special legal counsel selected by the 
board of directors or its committee in the manner heretofore provided or, if such a quorum of the 
board of directors cannot be obtained and such a committee cannot be designated, selected by a 
majority vote of the board of directors (in which selection directors who are parties may 
participate). Authorization of indemnification, evaluation as to reasonableness of expenses and 
determination and authorization of advancements for expenses shall be made in the same manner 
as the determination that indemnification is permissible, except that if there are fewer than two 
directors who are not at the time patties to the proceeding or if the determination is made by 
special legal counsel, authorization of indemnification and evaluation as to reasonableness of 
expenses shall be made by those selecting such counsel. 

Section 5. Advance for Expenses. The corporation shall pay for or reimburse the 
reasonable expenses incurred by any individual who is a party to a proceeding in advance of final 
disposition of the proceeding if: (i) he furnishes the corporation a written statement of his good 
faith belief that he has met the standard of conduct described in Section 1 of this Article and a 
written undertaking, executed personally or on his behalf, to repay the advance if it is ultimately 
detennined that indemnification of such individual in the specific case is not pennissible; and (ii) 
a dete1111ination is made that the facts then known to those making the determination would not 
preclude indemnification under this Article. An undertaking furnished to the corporation in 
accordance with the provisions of this Section shall be an unlimited general obligation of the 
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individual furnishing the same but need not be secured and may be accepted by the corporation 
without reference to financial ability to make repayment. 

Section 6. Indemnification of Employees and Agents. The corporation may, but shall not 
be required to, indemnify and advance expenses to employees and agents of the corporation to 
the same extent as provided in this Article with respect to directors and officers. 

Section 7. Elimination or Limitation of Liability of Directors and Officers. Except as 
provided in Section 8 of this A1ticle, in any proceeding brought by or in the right of the 
corporation or brought by or on behalf of the members, the damages assessed against a director 
or officer arising out of a single transaction, occurrence or course of conduct shall be limited as 
follows: 

( 1) A director or officer who does not receive compensation for his services as
such shall have no liability for damages if, at the time of the transaction, occurrence or 
course of conduct giving rise to the proceeding, the corporation was a community 
association as defined in Sections 13.1-814.l and 13.1-870.1 of the Virginia Nonstock 
Corporation Act. 

(2) The liability of a director or officer who does not receive compensation
from the corporation for his services as such shall not exceed the amount of$ 100.00 if, at 
the time of the transaction, occunence or course of conduct giving rise to the proceeding, 
the corporation was not a community association as defined in Sections 13.1-814.1 and 
13. l-870. l of the Virginia Nonstock Corporation Act.

(3) The liability of a director or officer who receives compensation from the
corporation for his services as such shall not exceed the amount of $100.00. 

Section 8. Liability of Directors and Officers Not Eliminated or Limited. The liability of a 
director or officer shall not be eliminated or limited in accordance with the provisions of Section 
7 of this A1ticle if the director or officer engaged in willful misconduct or a knowing violation of 
the criminal law. 

Section 9. Definitions. In this Article: 

"Director" and "officer" mean an individual who is or was a director or officer of the 
corporation, as the case may be, or who, while a director or officer of the corporation is or was 
serving at the corporation's request as a director, officer, manager, partner, trustee, employee or 
agent of another foreign or domestic corporation, limited liability company, partnership, joint 
venture, trust, employee benefit plan or other entity. A director or officer shall be considered to 
be serving an employee benefit plan at the corporation's request if his duties to the corporation 
also impose duties on, or otherwise involve services by, him to the plan or to participants in or 
beneficiaries of the plan. 
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"Individual" includes, unless the context requires otherwise, the estate, heirs, executors, 
personal representatives and administrators of an individual. 

"Corporation" means the corporation and any domestic or foreign predecessor entity of the 
corporation in a merger or other transaction in which the predecessor's existence ceased upon the 
consummation of the transaction. 

"Expenses" includes but is not limited to counsel fees. 

11Liability" means the obligation to pay a judgment, settlement, penalty, fine, including any 
excise tax assessed with respect to an employee benefit plan; or reasonable expenses incurred 
with respect to a proceeding. 

"Official capacity" means: (i) when used with respect to a director, the office of director in 
the corporation� (ii) when used with respect to an officer, the office in the corporation held by 
him; or (iii) when used with respect to an employee or agent, the employment or agency 
relationship undertaken by him on behalf of the corporation. "Official capacity" does not include 
service for any foreign or domestic corporation or other partnership, joint venture, trust, 
employee benefit plan or other entity. 

"Party" includes an individual who was, is or is threatened to be made a named defendant 
or respondent in a proceeding. 

"Proceeding" means any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, 
whether civil, criminal, administrative, arbitrative or investigative and whether formal or 
informal and whether or not by or in the right of the corporation. 

Section 10. Provisions Not Exclusive. As authorized by the Virginia Nonstock 
Corporation Act, the provisions of this Article are in addition to and not in limitation of the 
specific powers of a corporation to indemnify directors and officers set forth therein. If any 
provision of this Article shall be adjudicated invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, such adjudication shall not be deemed to invalidate or otherwise affect any other 
provision hereof or any power of indemnity which the corporation may have under the Virginia 
Nonstock Corporation Act or other laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia. 
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WINTERGREEN ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW BOARD DOCUMENTS 

IV. 

REVISED JANUARY�2006 

DESIGN CRITERIA AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

In general, the desired goal at Wintergreen is to create building forms that readily become part of 
the natural environment. Homes on the flat valley floor will have somewhat different requirements than 
those on the mountain slopes. However, for every home, ham10ny of the exterior design, the proportions 
of the overall structure to its parts, details of railings, doors and windows, roof type and pitch will all be 
considered. Carefully selecting materials, colors and finishes will contribute to the overall appearance of 
the differing Wintergreen environments. As Wintergreen grows, the relationship of each residence to 
that of its neighbors becomes increasingly important and should be a prime consideration in the 
design process. Preservation of the natural environment and of the purity of our water through 
careful earth movement and landscaping is always a high priority. 

NEW HOMES 

The following information and recommendations are offered to property owners and their 
architects or designers as a planning guide for use during the design process for new homes. The ARB is 
concerned with the following basic considerations when making its decisions in the review process and 
will base their approvals on these concerns. 

ORIENTATION AND SITING: Generally, the relationship of a house to the street should be 
considered subordinate to the other parameters. In other words, it is unimportant that the house is parallel 
to the street, but the siting should instead be derived from the desired views and the slope of the land. 
Residential areas have a variety of views towards which a house may be oriented, such as the mountains, 
woodlands, golf courses, ski slopes or distant valley. When selecting one or more specific views towards 
which to orient your house, you should take into account the effects of various exposures to the sun and 
wind. Siting the house parallel to the contours will result in less damage to the site and contribute to the 
appearance of a house "fitted" into its environment. This positioning permits the retention of the natural 
features around the house and allows passers-by to look beyond the structure to longer distance views 
rather than having their view inten-upted by a man-made object. 

In siting your home, the relationship of the structure(s) to existing or future nearby 
structures, streets, property lines, future utilities, septic fields and wells must be considered. 
Remember, in mountainous terrain with climbing, winding roads, four sides of a house as well as the roof 
and underside are often visible from different points on adjacent roads and lots. Extreme care must be 
taken to keep the roofline below the treetops. Drainage water from roofs and paving must be distributed 
over large areas of ground or routed to graveled trenches covered with native plant materials to minimize 
erosion. 

The siting of the home and driveway is critical for both the owner and for neighbors. Set-backs of 
at least fifteen ( 15) feet to the side and back are required for the preservation of vegetation, prevention of 
erosion and to protect the privacy of all. Every effort should be made to place the utility trench within 
the footprint of the driveway thus decreasing the need to clear vegetation. Effort should also be made to 
place the grinder pump in the ten (I 0) foot cleared area around the house. A restoration of a vegetation 
buffer area may be required in the event of over clearing of vegetation. 

The siting of the home and driveway will take account of topography. Prevention of erosion is a 
serious consideration on sloping lots. Simple te1Tacing, such as the use of log berms placed horizontally 
at right angle to the slope, is an easy method for modifying erosion on a disturbed slope. Naturally 
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WINTERGREEN ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW BOARD DOCUMENTS REVISED JANUARY-2006 

topography, such as rock outcrops, frequently harbors a diverse and unique flora. Outcrops may be a 
focus of a landscape plan and should remain undisturbed. 

The Covenants provide for a 30 foot easement along any property that joins a golf course or 
ski slope. There is to be no disturbance, cutting or vegetation or sitting of the house, deck or other 
structure in this easement without the approval of W.P.I. and the A.R.B. 

ACCESS AND PARKING: Driveways must be considered from the standpoint of safety of 
access upon the main road, ease of grade and minimizing the destruction of growth and disturbance of the 
landscape. Curved rather than straight driveways are preferred. Only one driveway is permitted per 
property. While two improved off-street parking spaces are mandatory; spaces in addition to this 
minimum are highly desirable to accommodate visitors. Due to the steep slopes on some lots, it will be 
necessary to provide parking near the road. Imaginative solutions to this problem are encouraged to 
avoid the unsightly condition of numerous cars parked just off the main road. Interference with natural 
drainage flows and introduction of surface draining from nearby roadways must be avoided. 

FOUNDATIONS: Exposed masonry foundation walls must be held to a maximum of six (6) 
feet and must be parged and painted with a color that will blend with the exterior finish of the 
house. Native stone may be used. Pier foundations are not recommended since it is very difficult to 
insulate water lines and floor systems to prevent freeze-ups during the winter months. Few lots lend 
themselves to slab on grade construction, though this is a permitted method when site conditions allow. 
Most grade conditions will require a standard reinforced concrete footing with crawl space or basement 
below the wood framing. 

EXTERIOR LIGHTING: Only mm1mum amounts of lighting to illuminate doorways, 
walkways and decks should be used to prevent light pollution in residential areas. Low-wattage, ground 
level landscaping lighting is encouraged, and, if overhead lighting is necessary, it should be shielded 
and pointed downward. External light fixtures must be approved as to placement and type before they 
are installed. 

EXTERIOR MATERIALS: Generally, the fewer materials (and colors) utilized on the exterior 
of a house, the more cohesive the structure becomes. Cedar, cypress and redwood siding or their 
synthetic counter-parts (such as Hardi-Plank) in a variety of configurations are encouraged, as is stone 
native to the area. Vinyl or aluminum siding is not allowed. No reflective finishes should be used on 
exterior finishes with the exception of hardware items. 

WINDOWS: In all instances windows should be of energy efficient construction complete with 
insulating glass glazing. Natural or bright aluminum finishes are not acceptable. Anodized 
aluminum finishes may be dark bronze or black, and painted or vinyl finishes should be warm ea.t1h 
tones, i.e.: sandstone, gray, beige, etc. White may be considered for valley floor homes. White will not 
be allowed for the higher attitude homes. 

ROOF FORMS: Because of the mountainous terrain, roofs should be designed to reflect the 
character of the slope of the land and should be adequately pitched for shedding water, leaves and snow. 
Steeper pitches (7 in 12 and above) are required for main roofs: ancillary roofs may have less steep 
slopes. Overhangs should be considered for protection from sun and rain, though wind factors in certain 
locations should be kept in mind. 
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ROOFING MATERIALS: Composite shingles, concrete shingles and metal roofs are permitted. 
When asphalt shingles are used, they must be 250# minimum per square (40 year or above) weight 
and shake"type design. Wood shingles are not allowed due to fire hazard. All roofs are subject to 
material and color approval. 

EXTERIOR COLORS: Exterior colors will be carefully controlled. A sample board must be 
submitted with the final application showing all external colors for siding, trim, windows, 
foundation, roof, gutters, etc. For questionable colors, the ARB retains the option to require that a 
sample of paint three to four (3 to 4) feet square be applied directly to the house, before the whole house 
is painted. On higher altitude homes, white or very light colors, including exposed natural aluminum 
finishes, will not be permitted. Warm earth tones or weathered grays are preferred. A broader range of 
colors is permitted for valley floor homes. 

LANDSCAPING/EXCAVATION: It is required that the existing terrain be left undisturbed to 
the extent possible in order to preserve the natural vegetation in wooded settings. General clearing of 
the site is not permitted. Particular care should be taken to preserve the natural understory and ground 
cover. All disturbed areas must be stabilized with bark mulch, rock or river gravel or ground cover so 
that the likelihood of soil erosion is minimized. Once the final plan is approved for construction, no 
trees, shrubs or other vegetation regardless of diameter may be removed without written approval 
if more than ten (10) feet beyond the footprint of the house and the area designated for the 
driveway and utility trench. Equipment appropriate to the site to accomplish the aims of minimum 
earth movement should be employed. In the event that unique constrnction techniques such as that 
required for the use of modular components are being considered, such techniques will not be prohibited. 
However, there shall be no clearing of vegetation or changing of topography performed in excess of that 
required for a conventional home. Where foundations may be a problem, the ARB has the option to 
require a preliminary landscape plan before approval of the final landscape plan if req1.1ired. 

In all cases, the 1.1se of native plant materials is encouraged and prefe1Ted. Use of invasive species 
like Tree of Heaven, Kudzu, Japanese Stilt Grass, Garlic Mustard, Purple Loosestdfe, Crown Vetch, 
Japanese Honeysuckle and others should be strongly avoided. 

GRADING AND STORM WATER MANAGEMENT: Because of the likelihood of soil 
erosion, concentration of surface water should be avoided. Provisions for storm water management 
must be shown on the drainage/water management plan as well. Silt fencing or other erosion control 
structures will be required. Plans to accommodate this requirement must be on the Grading Plan (see 
page 20-24 ). 

STORAGE BUILDING REQUIREMENTS: Storage buildings will be considered as a 
permanent detached building as per the definitions outlined in the Covenants and Restrictions of 
February 1,2000 and must conform to the specific requirement for total number of detached buildings 
allowed on the site at the particular subdivision. Storage building construction shall be of the same 
materials and finishes as those used on the primary residence and A.R.B. approval requirements 
arc the same as for a primary residence (elevations, site plan, cross section, etc.). Building permits 
must be obtained and displayed at the site whether unit is of modular construction or constructed at the 
site. If electricity is provided, it shall require county inspection and approval. Modular storage units on 
skids will not be approved. Structures shall be anchored to a concrete slab or an approved constructed 
foundation system capable of resisting the horizontal wind load imposed on the building. 
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EXISTING HOMES 

The on-going appearance of properties is a concern of the ARB. Owners of existing homes and 
must consider the recommendations set forth above in proposing changes. The following arc 
examples of changes that must be submitted to the ARB: 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

9. 

Exterior expansion or alteration of any type 

Conversion or additions to screened porches 

Changes, additions to or removal of windows, skylights, doors, etc. 

Repainting home, trim, deck or other appendages to the home even if the color is the same 

Installation of hot tubs, fish ponds, fountains or storage buildings 

Planting of trees or slu-ubs in areas affecting the enjoyment by neighbors of their prope1iy 

Changes or additions to landscaping, yard slopes or irrigation systems, especially if drainage 
patterns must be affected 

Clearing of trees beyond ten (10) feet of the footprint of the house 

Clearing of understory shrubs and native vegetation 

Addition of any exterior lighting 
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1. Definitions:

COMPLAINT PROCEDURE 

AUGUST 10, 2012 

a. "The "Act" means the Virginia Property Owners' Association Act (§55-

508 et seq., VA Code Anno). 

a. "Adverse decision" or "final adverse decision" means the final determination

issued by the Association pursuant to an Association Complaint procedure that is opposite of, or 

does not provide for, either wholly or in part, the cure or corrective action sought by the 

Complainant. Such decision means all avenues for internal appeal under the Association 

Complaint procedure have been exhausted. The date of the final adverse decision shall be the 

date of the Notice issued pursuant to Section 3 .d. hereof. 

b. "Association" means the Wintergreen Property Owners' Association, Inc.

c. "Complainant" means an Association member or citizen who makes a written

Complaint relating to violations of the Declaration or the Act pursuant to an Association 

Complaint procedure. 

d. "Complaint" shall mean a written Complaint filed by a member of the Association

or citizen pursuant addressed to the Governing Board or the Executive Director of the 

Association relating to a matter regarding the action, inaction, or decision by the Governing 

Board, or Association inconsistent with applicable laws and regulations, [declaration and 

governing documents]. 

e. [Declaration shall mean the (i) "Declaration of Rights, Restrictions, Affirmative

Obligations and Conditions Applicable to all Property in Wintergreen", duly recorded in the 

Clerk's Office of the Circuit Court of Nelson County, Virginia in Deed Book 137, at Page 568, 

(ii) "First Addendum to Amended and Restated Declaration of Covenants and Restrictions of the

Wintergreen Property Owners Association", dated as of February 6 2009, and recorded in the

aforesaid Clerk's Office as Instrument No. 090000404' (iii) the "Declaration of Rights,

Restrictions, Affirmative Obligations and Conditions, Valley Residential Covenants", which are

recorded in the aforesaid Clerk's Office in Deed Book 148, at Page 103; (iv) the "Declaration of

Rights, Restrictions, Affirmative Obligations and Conditions, Amended Valley Residential

Covenants", which are recorded in the aforesaid Clerk's Office in Deed Book 230, at Page 720;

(v) the "Declaration of Rights, Restrictions, Affirmative Obligations and conditions, Single

Family Covenants, which are recorded in the aforesaid Clerk's Office in Deed Book 137, at Page

638 and (vi) the '"'Declaration of Rights, Restrictions, Affirmative Obligations and conditions,

Multiple Family Covenants, which are recorded in the aforesaid Clerk's Office in Deed Book

137, at Page 646, all as may be amended from time to time. Association governing documents.]

f. "Executive Director" shall mean the Executive Director appointed by the

Governing Board. 

g. "Governing Board" shall mean the Board of Directors of the Association.



h. "Governing Documents" means collectively the applicable organizational
documents, including but not limited to the cmTent and effective (i) articles of incorporation, and 
bylaws of a property owners' Association, as may be amended from time to time. Association 
governing documents also include, to the extent in existence, resolutions, rules and regulations, 
or other guidelines governing Association member conduct and Association governance, all as 
may be amended from time to time. 

i. "Notice" any Notice to be provided hereunder which shall be in writing and shall
be either (i) hand delivered, (ii) mailed by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, at 
the address provided, or (iii) if provided with an email address by Complainant, by email to such 
email address provided Association obtains proof of the electronic delivery thereof. 

J. "Record of Complaint" means all documents, correspondence, and other materials
related to a decision made pursuant to an Association Complaint procedure. 

2. Filing a Complaint:

a. Any member or citizen expressing the wish to file a written Complaint against the
Association shall be provided with a copy of this procedure, the address, telephone number and 
electronic mail address of the Association and the mailing address, telephone number, and 
electronic mail address of the Office of the Common Interest Community Ombudsman. 

b. Any Complaint shall (i) reasonably describe the nature of the violation, (ii) shall
set forth all evidence in the possession of Complainant relating to such violation, (iii) shall 
specifically refer to or provide a copy of the specific language of the [Declaration, Governing 
Documents], law or regulation which purportedly has been violated and (iv) shall set forth the 
requested action to be undertaken by the Association to resolve the Complaint. Complainant 
shall also provide with the Complaint, his or her mail address for the purpose of delivering 
Notices required hereunder, his or her telephone number and, if the Complainant desired to be 
provided Notice by electronic mail, his or her email address. 

c. Any Complaints not relating to a matter regarding an action, inaction, or decision
by the Governing Board, or Association inconsistent with the [Declaration, Governing 
Documents,] applicable laws and regulations shall not be subject to this procedure. 

3. How Complaints shall be Handled:

a. All Complaints shall initially be directed to the Executive Director for review and
consideration unless such Complaint is made with respect to a violation of the [Declaration, 
Governing Documents,] Declaration or the Act by the Executive Director personally in which 
case such Complaint shall be directed to a member of the Governing Board, The address of the 
Executive Director is: 88 Wintergreen Drive, Wintergreen, VA. Any Complaint to be filed with 
an individual director of the Association shall be mailed, certified mail, return receipt requested 
to such director's home address which shall be provided to Complainant upon receipt of a copy 
of such Complaint by the administrative staff of the Association. 
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b. Upon receipt of a Complaint, a Notice of acknowledgment thereof shall be

provided to Complainant as required herein. The Executive Director shall review all Complaints 

within seven days of personal receipt of such Complaint and, if possible, shall send a written 

Notice of response to such Complaint within 10 days of such receipt. If insufficient infonnation 

shall be available to respond to such Complaint in a substantive manner, a Notice of response 

shall be made within 10 days of receipt of any needed additional infom1ation. The Executive 

Director shall respond to any required additional info1111alion as though it were a new Complaint. 

c. Any decision made by the Executive Director may be appealed by a Complainant

by making written Notice of appeal to the Governing Board. Such Notice of appeal shall be in 

writing and shall be delivered to the Executive Director in the manner required for a Notice. 

d. Any Complaint initially addressed to a Board Member due to such Complaint

being made against the Executive Director, or any appeal of a decision made by the Executive 

Director shall be reviewed at the next scheduled meeting of the Governing Board provided such 

meeting shall be more than three days after the receipt of such Complaint or appeal, at which 

meeting a response to the Complaint shall be developed. If a Complaint is filed three days or 

less before a schedule meeting, such Complaint shall be reviewed at the next regularly scheduled 

meeting of the Governing Board. Complainant shall be provided written Notice of the date, 

time, and location of any meeting of the Governing Board at which the Complaint or the appeal 

of the Executive Director's decision shall be considered. 

e. Notice of any decision by the Governing Board shall be sent within seven days of

the meeting considering such appeal or Complaint. 

f. The Notice of the decision by the Board shall include the Complainant's right to

file a Notice of Final Adverse Decision with the Common Interest Community Board via the 

Common Interest Community Ombudsman and the applicable contact information. 

4. Distribution of Complaint Procedure:

a. The Association Complaint procedure shall be readily available upon request to all

members of the Association and citizens. 

b. The Association Complaint procedure shall be included as an attachment to the resale

certificate or the Association disclosure packet. 

5. Maintenance of Association Record of Complaint.

a. A record of each Association Complaint filed with the Association shall be

maintained in accordance with § 55-530 E 1 of the Code of Virginia. 

b. Unless otherwise specified by the director or his designee, the Association shall

provide to the director or his designee, within 14 days of receipt of the request, any available 

document, book, or record concerning the Association Complaint that shall be requested. 

3 



CONTACT INFORMATION 

WINTERGREEN PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. 

Jay Roberts, Executive Director 88 
Wintergreen Drive, Roseland, VA 
22967-2162 Tel.#: (434) 325-8531 
Email: jroberts@wtgpoa.org 

COMMON INTEREST COMMUNITY OMBUDSMAN 

Common Interest Community Ombudsman 
Common Interest Community Board 
Department of Professional and Occupational Regulation 
9960 Mayland Drive 
Richmond, VA 23233 
Tel#: (804) 367-2941 
Email: CICOmbudsman@dpor.virginia.gov 
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Resolution 

Whereas the Virginia Common Interest Community Board has passed Ombudsman 

Regulations requiring the Association to adopt Complaint Resolution Regulations within 90 days 

of July 1, 2012; 

Whereas the Association desires to adopt a reasonable procedure which will fairly and 

equitable resolve any Complaints that members of the Association or citizens may have with the 

management or operation of the Association. 

NOW, THEREFORE be it resolved that the Board of Directors does hereby adopt the 

attached Complaint Procedure: 

Adopted: August 10, 2012 Board of Directors Meeting. Minutes reflect above resolution. 
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REAL ESTATE SIGNAGE 

REGULATIONS 

No "For Sale" signs will be approved or permitted within the 
master plan boundaries. 

"Open House" signs shall be permitted as follows: 

1. One "Open House" sign complete with company logo,
will be pennitted at each open house.

2. Small (6"x 18") generic directional signs will be permitted
to direct the public to "Open House" locations. No more
than two per intersection will be allowed.

3. Both types of signs will be erected and removed the day of
the "Open House".

4. By definition, an "Open House" shall be conducted by a
licensed real estate agent, or absent a listing or listing
agreement, the owner of the property.

5. Violations of the above policy can result in the denial of
approvals for offending agencies.

www.wtgpoa.org 
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Signage including Political Signs 

Wintergreen Property Owners Association Inc. has a "no sign" 

restriction as stated in in the Deed Covenants and Restrictions, unless 

approved by the "Company", this includes but not limited to political 

signs. 

Deed Covenants and Restrictions: 

Part 1 Number 5: 

"No signs shall be erected or maintained on any property by anyone 

including, but not limited to, the owner, a realtor, a contractor or 

subcontractor, legal proceedings. If such permission is granted, the 

Company reserves the right to restrict size, color and content of such 

signs. Residential property identification like signs not exceeding a 

combined total of more than one (1) square foot may be erected 

without the written permission of the Company.,,,

www.wt�poa.org 


	Disclosure Packet Documents
	June and August 2020 Minutes
	2020 June Minutes
	2020 Aug Minutes




